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STATUTORY REPORTSCORPORATE OVERVIEW FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of
NPCI BHARAT BILLPAY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

OPINION
We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements 
of NPCI Bharat BillPay Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the 
Statement of Profit & Loss, including the statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity 
and the Statement of Cash flow for the year ended on that 
date, and a summary of material accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (herein after referred to as “the Ind AS 
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of fairs of the Company as at 31st March 2025, its profit 
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind 
AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS 
Key Audit Matters are those matters that in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
Financial Statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial 
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
There are no such matters to report. 

Independent Auditor’s Report

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT 
THEREON
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other 
information and notes to accounts. The other information 
comprises of all information included in the Annual report 
but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether such other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information; we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT AND 
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR 
THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs, profit / loss (including other comprehensive income), 
statement of changes in equity and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind 
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management 
and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the 
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Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR 
THE AUDIT OF THE IND AS FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic de users taken on the 
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls. Evaluate the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as 

a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of 
the Ind AS financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial 
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in -

(i)	 planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 
results of our work; and 

(ii)	 to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS 
1.	 As required under section 143(5) of the Act, based on our 

audit as aforesaid, we enclose herewith below, a report on 
the directions including additional directions issued by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C & A G) action 
taken thereon and its impact on the accounts and financial 
statements of the Company.

2.	 The Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the 
Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub- Section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in 
the ‘Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

3.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our 
audit we report that:
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a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books;

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss 
including the Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity the and the 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

d)	 In our opinion, the Ind AS financial statements 
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 
of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on 31st March 2025 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the director 
is disqualified as on 31st March 2025 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) 
of the Act;

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
‘Annexure B’ to this report;

g)	 In our opinion, Managerial Remuneration has not 
been paid to its Directors however, only Sitting 
Fees has been paid to Directors for the year ended 
31st March 2025 which is within the limits prescribed 
under section 197 of the Act.

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

i.	 The Company did not have any pending 
litigations and claims which would impact its 
financial position as on 31st March 2025; 

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses as at 31st March 2025;

iii.	 In view of there being no amounts required to 
be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund for the year under audit, the 
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

iv.	 a) 	 The management has represented that, 
to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the notes to the 
accounts, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the company 
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) 	 The management has represented, 
that, to the best of it’s knowledge and 
belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts, no funds have 
been received by the company from 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; and

c) 	 Based on such audit procedures that the 
auditor has considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to their notice that has caused 
them to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any 
material mis-statement.

v.	 The Company has not declared / paid 
dividend during the year and the same is 
not in contravention with section 123 of the 
Companies Act 2013 to the extent it applies for 
payment of dividend.

vi.	 The accompanying financial statements and 
based on our examination which included test 
checks, the Company, in respect of financial 
year commencing on 1 April 2024, has used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books 
of account which has a feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has 
been operated throughout the year for all 
relevant transactions recorded in the software. 
Further, during the course of our audit we did not 
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come across any instance of audit trail feature 
being tampered with. Furthermore, the audit 
trail has been preserved by the Company as per 
the statutory requirements for record retention 
from the date the audit trail was enabled for the 
accounting software.

4.	 As per the requirements of section 143 (5), in our opinion 
and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, books of accounts and other 
records produced before us for verification and on the 
basis of management representation; the said accounts, 
read together with the company’s Accounting policies and 
the Notes thereto are given below:

BASED ON THE VERIFICATION OF RECORDS AND OF THE COMPANY AND BASED ON 
INFORMATION AND EXPLANATIONS GIVEN TO US, WE GIVE BELOW A REPORT ON THE 
DIRECTIONS/ADDITIONAL DIRECTIONS ISSUED BY THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR 
GENERAL OF INDIA IN TERMS OF SECTION 143(5) OF THE ACT.

Sr. 
No.

General Directions issued by the Comptroller and 
auditor General of India

Comments

1. Whether the company has system in place to process all 
the accounting transactions through IT system? If yes, the 
implications of processing of accounting transactions outside 
IT system on the integrity of the accounts along with the 
financial implications, if any, may be stated.

The Company has system in place to process all the 
accounting transactions through IT systems (Microsoft 
Dynamics 365). The GST Returns have been filed 
using a GST software tools and details related to GST 
are maintained within that software. Also, the clearing 
and settlement for the business is done in application 
developed for Bharat Bill Payment System (BBPS) for 
booking daily party wise revenue, the entity being licensed 
under the Payment and Settlement Systems Act, 2007 for 
the said function of BBPS.

2. Whether there are any restructuring of an existing loan or 
cases of waiver / write off debts/loans/interest etc. made by 
lender to the company due to the company’s inability to 
repay the loan? if yes, the financial impact may be stated. 
Whether such cases are properly accountant for? (in case, 
lender is a Government company, then its direction is also 
applicable for statutory auditor of lender company)

Not Applicable

The Company has not availed any loan or the Company is 
not dealing with lending/borrowing any loan.

3. Whether funds (grants/ subsidy etc.) received/receivable for 
specific schemes from central government/state government 
or its agencies were properly accounted for / utilized as per its 
term and conditions? List the cases of deviation

Not Applicable

There are no case of funds received / receivable for the 
specific schemes from Central/State agencies.
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ADDITIONAL DIRECTIONS ISSUED BY C&AG AS APPLICABLE TO NPCI BHARAT BILLPAY 
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR 2024-25

Sr. 
No.

Additional Directions Comments

1. NBFC dealing with digital 
payment products and 
services. Whether the 
security controls for digital 
payment products and 
services are in compliance 
with the directions of 
RBI for Digital Payment 
Security Controls dated 
18th February 2021?

Company carried out a detailed review of RBI Master Directions on Digital Payment 
Security Controls and thereafter appointed (by NPCI) Cert-IN empaneled Third-Party auditor 
(ControlCase Auditor) and initiated a compliance check against requirements of RBI Master 
Direction on Digital Payment Security Controls.

All business applications (including NBBL’s applications under BBPS) were included in the 
scope of the assessment.

The audit was concluded vide report dated 10th March 2025 and no open issues 
were reported.

FOR J M T AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 104167W

SANJAY PICHHOLIA
Partner
Membership No. 122651

Date:  16/05/2025
Place:  Mumbai
UDIN: 25122651BMKXPT7805
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1)	 In respect of Fixed Assets:

a)	 the Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars including quantitative details 
and situation of its fixed assets. 

b)	 the fixed assets have been physically verified by 
the management at all its offices in phased manner 
at reasonable intervals which in our opinion is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company 
and nature of assets. In our opinion and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. No fixed asset has been disposed of 
during the year and therefore does not affect the 
going concern assumption.

c)	 As the Company has no immovable properties during 
the year under audit, this clause is not applicable.

2)	 The company’s business does not involve inventories 
and accordingly, the requirements under clause 3(ii) of 
the order are not applicable to Company and hence not 
commented upon. 

3)	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured or 
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships 
or other parties covered in the Register maintained under 
section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon.

4)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the provisions of section 185 
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, 
investments, guarantees, and security were not applicable 
during the period under review. 

5)	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India and provision of Section 73 to 76 or any 
other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with the regards to 
the deposits accepted from public are not applicable.

6)	 As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has 
not been specified by the Central 

	 Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the 
Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the Company. 

7)	 a) 	 According to information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

books of account, and records, the Company has 
been generally regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees 
State Insurance, Income-Tax, goods and service tax 
and any other statutory dues with the appropriate 
authorities. According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at 
March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months 
from the date on when they become payable.

(b) 	 According to the information and explanation given 
to us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and 
service tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, 
duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on 
account of any dispute.

8)	 According to the information and explanation given to us, 
the Company has recorded all transactions incurred during 
the year under audit. The Company has no unrecorded 
income to disclose in the books of accounts.

9)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any 
loan either from financial institutions or from the government 
and has not issued any debentures. The Company has 
availed line of credit facility however the same is not utilized 
during the year. 

10)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 
information and explanations given by the management, 
the company has not raised money by way of initial public 
offer or further public offer including debt instruments and 
term Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (x) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence 
not commented upon.

11)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 
information and explanations given by the management, 
we report that no fraud by the Company or on the 
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed 
or reported during the year.

12)	 In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

13)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the provisions of Section 177 and 
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 were applicable to 
the Company with respect to applicable transactions with 
the related parties and details of related party transactions 

Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 UNDER ‘REPORT ON Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report 
of even date’)
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have been disclosed in the financial statements as required 
by the applicable accounting standards. 

14)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the Company has the Internal 
Audit System equivalent to the size and nature of its 
business. The Reports provided by the Internal Auditors 
for Audit Period were duly considered while conducting 
statutory audit.

15)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 
information and explanations given by the management, 
the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with 
him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon.

16)	 In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered 
under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence 
not commented upon.

17)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the Company has not incurred 
any cash losses during the current financial year. 

18)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, as there is no resignation of 
Statutory Auditor for the year under review. However, the 
C&AG has appointed new statutory auditor on completion 

of term of outgoing auditor. We as new auditor, based on 
NOC issued by outgoing auditors, there were no issues, 
observations or concerns raised.

19)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and the 
information and explanations given by the management, 
no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report. The Company is capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date.

20)	 There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects 
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule 
VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second 
proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order 
is not applicable for the year.

	 There is no amount remaining unspent under sub-section 
sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
pursuant to any ongoing project. Accordingly, reporting 
under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable 
for the year.

21)	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the Company is a subsidiary 
of National Payments Corporation of India (The Holding 
Company) and the Company has no subsidiaries during 
the financial year, hence this clause is not applicable to 
the company.

FOR J M T AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 104167W

SANJAY PICHHOLIA
Partner
Membership No. 122651

Date:  16/05/2025
Place:  Mumbai
UDIN: 25122651BMKXPT7805
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REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-
SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”) 
1.	 We have audited the internal financial controls with 

reference to Ind AS Financial Statements of NPCI Bharat 
BillPay Limited (“the company”) as of 31st March 2025 
in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Financial 
Statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
2.	 The Company’s management is responsible for 

establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control with reference to Ind AS 
financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements 
(the “Guidance Notes”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”).These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 

internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial 
Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards, 
issued by ICAI on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both are 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both 
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to Ind AS Financial Statements was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.

4.	 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system with reference to Ind AS Financial 

Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS 
Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls with reference to the Ind AS 
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedure selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5.	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the company’s internal financial controls system 
with reference to the Ind AS Financial Statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
6.	 A company’s internal financial control with reference to 

Ind AS Financial Statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal financial control with reference to Ind AS Financial 
Statements includes those policies and procedures that 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company. 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company, and provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements:

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL 
FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO 
IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7.	 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 

controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements 

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 2 (f) UNDER ‘REPORT ON Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 
report of even date)
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to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control with reference to Ind AS Financial 
Statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION
8.	 In our opinion, to the best of our information and according 

to the explanation given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 

system with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements and 
such internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS 
Financial Statements were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2025, based on the internal control with reference 
to Ind AS Financial Statements criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of internal Financial Controls With reference to Ind AS 
Financial Statements issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

For J M T AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 104167W

SANJAY PICHHOLIA
Partner
Membership No. 122651

Date:  16/05/2025
Place:  Mumbai
UDIN: 25122651BMKXPT7805
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As per our report attached	 For NPCI Bharat BillPay Limited
For JMT and Associates	 Ajay Kumar Choudhary	 Drushti Desai
Chartered Accountants	 Chairman 	 Director
Registration No.: 104167W	 DIN : 09498080	 DIN : 00294249

Sanjay Pichholia	 Noopur Chaturvedi	 Srivatsan G
Partner	 Managing Director and CEO	 Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 122651	 DIN : 11013793	 	

Date: 16th May 2025	 Supreetha Shetty
Place: Mumbai	 Company Secretary

Particulars Note 
No.

As at  
31st March 2025

As at 
31st March 2024

As at 
1st April 2023

Audited Restated Restated

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

a.  Property, Plant and Equipment 2.01  287.90  180.93  71.30 
b.  Capital work-in-progress 2.02  -   0.61  -  
c.  Intangible Assets 2.03  3,310.45  1,964.96  2,176.85 
d.  Intangible Assets Under Development 2.04  224.59  876.85  209.73 
e.  Financial Assets

i.  Investments 2.05  1,406.33  1,405.80  1,103.90 
ii.  Other Financial Assets 2.06  1.75  1.65  3,821.65 

f.  Deferred Tax Assets (net) 2.07  -   57.75  -  
g. Non-Current Tax Asset 2.08  1,069.77  109.44  70.14 

Total Non-Current Assets  6,300.79  4,597.99  7,453.57 
Current Assets

a.  Financial Assets
i.   Investments 2.09  -   199.62  864.30 
ii.  Trade Receivables 2.10  202.03  187.57  99.65 
iii.  Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.11  3,039.30  588.67  1,187.12 
iv.  Bank balances other than (iii) above 2.12  36,070.00  13,901.00  3,873.00 
v.  Other Financial Assets 2.13  230.24  4,088.05  4,313.41 

b.  Other Current Assets 2.14  712.13  214.67  129.80 
Total Current Assets  40,253.70  19,179.58  10,467.28 
TOTAL ASSETS  46,554.49  23,777.57  17,920.85 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

a.  Equity Share Capital 2.15  10,000.00  10,000.00  10,000.00 
b.  Other Equity 2.16  6,925.52  4,574.46  1,871.72 

Total Equity  16,925.52  14,574.46  11,871.72 
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

a.  Financial Liabilities
 i.   Other Financial Liabilities 2.17  23,744.06  7,748.63  4,909.99 

b.  Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 2.18  11.97  -   62.23 
c.  Provisions 2.19  66.03  75.04  34.46 

Total Non-Current Liabilities  23,822.06  7,823.67  5,006.68 
Current Liabilities

a.  Financial Liabilities
 i.   Trade Payables Due to: 2.20
      Micro and Small Enterprises  1,764.40  -   -  
     Other than Micro and Small Enterprises  2,523.50  643.69  631.89 
ii.   Other Financial Liabilities 2.21  498.06  314.44  183.70 

b.  Other Current Liabilities 2.22  240.95  196.31  111.86 
c.  Current Tax Liabilities 2.23  780.00  225.00  115.00 

Total Current Liabilities  5,806.91  1,379.44  1,042.45 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  46,554.49  23,777.57  17,920.85 
Material Accounting Policy Information and Notes on Accounts 1 & 2

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)
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As per our report attached	 For NPCI Bharat BillPay Limited
For JMT and Associates	 Ajay Kumar Choudhary	 Drushti Desai
Chartered Accountants	 Chairman 	 Director
Registration No.: 104167W	 DIN : 09498080	 DIN : 00294249

Sanjay Pichholia	 Noopur Chaturvedi	 Srivatsan G
Partner	 Managing Director and CEO	 Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 122651	 DIN : 11013793
	 	
Date: 16th May 2025	 Supreetha Shetty
Place: Mumbai	 Company Secretary

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Note 

No.
 Year ended 

31st March 2025
Audited

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Restated

Income

Revenue from Operations 2.24  14,358.78  8,566.58 

Other Income 2.25  2,129.73  1,258.79 

Total Income  16,488.51  9,825.37 

Expenses

Operating Expenses 2.26  2,476.99  653.15 

Marketing and Business Development Expenses 2.27  3,468.66  858.82 

Employee Benefits Expenses 2.28  4,340.82  2,962.59 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 2.29  1,424.31  785.03 

CSR Expenditure 2.30  43.27  18.28 

Administrative and Other Expenses 2.31  1,496.63  824.94 

Total Expenses  13,250.68  6,102.81 

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax  3,237.83  3,722.56 

Tax Expense

Current Tax 2.23  780.00  1,115.00 

Deferred Tax 2.23  69.98  (108.90)

Prior year Tax adjustment 2.23  29.80  (9.72)

Total Tax Expenses  879.78  996.38 

Profit/(Loss) for the period/year  2,358.05  2,726.18 

Other Comprehensive Income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss 2.16  (7.25)  (34.49)

(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss

 0.26  11.05 

Total Other Comprehensive Income  (6.99)  (23.44)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period/year  2,351.06  2,702.74 

Earnings per equity share

(i) Basic earnings per share ( ₹ ) 2.32  23.58  27.26 

(ii) Diluted earnings per share ( ₹ ) 2.32  23.58  27.26 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
for the year ended 31st March 2025

2.15 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL	 (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Balance as at 
1st April 2024

Changes in equity 
share capital due to 

prior period errors

Restated Balance  
as at 1st April 2024

Changes in equity 
share capital 

during the year

Balance as at  
31st March 2025

 10,000.00  -   10,000.00  -   10,000.00 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Balance as at 
1st April 2023

Changes in equity 
share capital due to 

prior period errors

Restated Balance  
as at 1st April 2023

Changes in equity 
share capital 

during the year

Balance as at  
31st March 2024

 10,000.00  -   10,000.00  -   10,000.00 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Balance as at 
1st April 2022

Changes in equity 
share capital due to 

prior period errors

Restated Balance  
as at 1st April 2022

Changes in equity 
share capital 

during the year

Balance as at  
1st April 2023

 10,000.00  -   10,000.00  -   10,000.00 

2.16 	 OTHER EQUITY
(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other items  
of Other 

Comprehensive  
Income

Total
Technology  

Reserve*
Risk  

Cover  
Reserve*

Product SGM  
Reserve**

Retained  
Earnings

Balance as at 1st April 2024  173.00  173.00  1,306.37  2,950.16  (28.07)  4,574.46 
Total Comprehensive Income  -   -   -   2,358.05  (6.99)  2,351.06 
Transfer to Technology Reserve*  193.42  -   -   (193.42)  -   -  
Transfer to Risk Cover Reserve*  -   193.42  -   (193.42)  -   -  
Transfer to SGM - BBPS Other  -   -   425.65  (425.65)  -   -  
Transfer to SGM - NOCS Other  -   -   0.28  (0.28)  -   -  
Balance as at 31st March 2025  366.42  366.42  1,732.30  4,495.44  (35.06)  6,925.52 
* In current year, the Company has created reserves namely, Risk Cover Reserve and Technology Reserve by way of appropriation 
from the Profit after Tax as per the policy approved by the Board in its meeting dated 03-May-2023.

** Product SGM Reserve is created pursuant to the Policy on Standardised Settlement Guarantee Mechanism as approved by 
RBI at the rate of ₹ 500 Lakh each for all the online products (BBPS and NOCS). These reserves are to be utilised as NBBL's 
contribution to meet the exigencies of settlement risk in the online products. It also includes the accumulated net income on 
SGM - earmarked Investments (net off SGM related and Income Tax expenses) amounting to ₹ 732.30 Lakh since inception of 
SGM Contribution.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
for the year ended 31st March 2025

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other items  

of Other 
Comprehensive  

Income

Total
Technology  

Reserve*
Risk  

Cover  
Reserve*

Product SGM  
Reserve**

Retained  
Earnings

Balance as at 1st April 2023  -   -   118.75  1,757.60  (4.63)  1,871.72 
Total Comprehensive Income  -   -   -   2,726.18  (23.44)  2,702.74 
Transfer to Technology Reserve*  173.00  -   -   (173.00)  -   -  
Transfer to Risk Cover Reserve*  -   173.00  -   (173.00)  -   -  
Transfer to SGM - 
Product SGM Reserve**

 -   -   1,000.00 (1,000.00)  -   -  

Transfer to SGM - BBPS Other  -   -   187.14  (187.14)  -   -  
Transfer to SGM - NOCS Other  -   -   0.48  (0.48)  -   -  
Balance as at 31st March 2024  173.00  173.00  1,306.37  2,950.16  (28.07)  4,574.46 
* In current year, the Company has created reserves namely, Risk Cover Reserve and Technology Reserve by way of appropriation 
from the Profit after Tax as per the policy approved by the Board in its meeting dated 03-May-2023.

** Product SGM Reserve is created pursuant to the Policy on Standardised Settlement Guarantee Mechanism as approved by 
RBI at the rate of ₹ 500 Lakh each for all the online products (BBPS and NOCS). These reserves are to be utilised as NBBL’s 
contribution to meet the exigencies of settlement risk in the online products. It also includes the accumulated net income on 
SGM - earmarked Investments (net off SGM related and Income Tax expenses) amounting to ₹ 306.37 Lakh since inception of 
SGM Contribution.

As per our report attached	 For NPCI Bharat BillPay Limited
For JMT and Associates	 Ajay Kumar Choudhary	 Drushti Desai
Chartered Accountants	 Chairman 	 Director
Registration No.: 104167W	 DIN : 09498080	 DIN : 00294249

Sanjay Pichholia	 Noopur Chaturvedi	 Srivatsan G
Partner	 Managing Director and CEO	 Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 122651	 DIN : 11013793
	 	
Date: 16th May 2025	 Supreetha Shetty
Place: Mumbai	 Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
for the year ended 31st March 2025

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  Year ended 

31st March 2025
Audited

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Restated

Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit / (loss) before tax  3,237.83  3,722.56 
Adjustment to reconcile net profit / (loss) to net cash by operating activities
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  1,424.31  785.03 
Provision for Doubtful Other Receivables  2.00  -  
Interest income  (2,044.67)  (1,169.45)
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost  (0.91)  (0.96)
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plan  (7.25)  (34.49)
Liabilities no longer required - written back  (62.32)  (71.08)
Operating Profit / (loss) before working capital changes  2,548.99  3,231.61 
Adjustment for:
(increase)/Decrease in trade receivables  (14.46)  (87.92)
increase/(Decrease) in trade payables  3,706.53  82.88 
(increase)/Decrease in other financial assets  4.73  (28.57)
(increase)/Decrease in other assets  (497.46)  (84.87)
increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities  16,179.05  2,969.38 
increase/(Decrease) in provisions  (9.01)  40.58 
increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities  44.64  84.45 
Cash generated from operations  21,963.01  6,207.54 
Adjustment for Income Tax  (1,215.13)  (1,033.56)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A)  20,747.88  5,173.98 
Cash flow from investing activities
Expenditure on Property, plant and equipment  (2,223.90)  (1,350.50)
Investment in earmarked funds  (24,191.74)  (11,211.00)
Maturity of earmarked funds  7,845.00  7,014.00 
Investment in own fund in Bank FD  (10,387.26)  (7,555.00)
Maturity of own fund in Bank FD  8,475.00  5,798.00 
Investment in Government Securities (quoted)  (1.37)  (501.93)
Redemption of Government Securities (quoted)  200.46  0.41 
Redemption of T-Bills  -   864.30 
Interest income  1,986.56  1,169.29 
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (B)  (18,297.25)  (5,772.43)
Cash flow from financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of equity shares  -   -  
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C)  -   -  
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  2,450.63  (598.45)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  588.67  1,187.12 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period/year  3,039.30  588.67 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
for the year ended 31st March 2025

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following:
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

Balances with Banks
Current account (Own Fund)  3,039.30  238.67 
Deposits with Banks
Original maturity less than 3 months and with current maturity less than 3 months 
(Non-Callable)

 -   -  

Original maturity less than 3 months and with current maturity less than 3 months (Callable)  -   350.00 
 Total  3,039.30  588.67 

As per our report attached	 For NPCI Bharat BillPay Limited
For JMT and Associates	 Ajay Kumar Choudhary	 Drushti Desai
Chartered Accountants	 Chairman 	 Director
Registration No.: 104167W	 DIN : 09498080	 DIN : 00294249

Sanjay Pichholia	 Noopur Chaturvedi	 Srivatsan G
Partner	 Managing Director and CEO	 Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 122651	 DIN : 11013793
	 	
Date: 16th May 2025	 Supreetha Shetty
Place: Mumbai	 Company Secretary
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COMPANY OVERVIEW 
NPCI Bharat BillPay Limited (NBBL/Company) is a Wholly 
Owned Subsidiary of National Payments Corporation of India 
(NPCI). NBBL was incorporated on 10th December 2020, under 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.   The Company has 
its registered office at 1001A, B Wing, 10th Floor, The Capital, 
Bandra - Kurla Complex, Bandra (East) Mumbai, 400051, 
Maharashtra, India 

NBBL was incorporated, inter alia, to operationalise Bharat 
Bill Payment Central Unit (BBPCU) under the Bharat Bill 
Payment System (BBPS) or any activity similar such as to 
provide an integrated bill payment system to participants that 
offers interoperable and accessible bill payment services or 
invoice-based payments or non- invoice-based payments 
including recharges, etc. to billers and customers through 
network of entities.  

Consumers have the convenience of making payments via 
smartphones/mobile apps, websites, and over 1500 digital 
channels, as well as through nearly 7 lakhs+ active agent 
touchpoints such as Kirana shops, Business Correspondents, 
and Bank Branches. Consumers can use various payment modes 
including cash and digital modes such as UPI, Net Banking, 
Debit Cards, Credit Cards, Wallets, IMPS, Aadhaar-Based 
Payments etc. The categories include utility payments such 
as Electricity, LPG Gas, Piped Gas, Water, Municipal Taxes & 
Services; telecom payments including Mobile Prepaid, Mobile 
Postpaid, Landline Postpaid, DTH, Cable, Broadband, and 
other recurring payments such as Loan Repayments, Insurance, 
FASTag Recharge, Credit Card, NCMC etc.

RBI vide letter DPSS.CO.AD.No .S21/02.14.004/2019-20 
dated 24th March 2021 had granted approval for transferring 
the license granted from NPCI to NBBL along with all rights 
and obligations attached thereto with respect to BBPCU. 
Consequent to the same, the Business Transfer Agreement 
(BTA) was executed on 7th May, 2021 between NPCI and NBBL.  
Also, in exercise of their powers conferred under Section 7 of 
the Payment and Settlement Systems Act, 2007, RBI granted 
the Certificate of Authorisation to operate the BBPCU to NBBL. 

1.	 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 
INFORMATION

1.1.	Basis of preparation and presentation of 
financial statements

	 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and 
other relevant provisions of the Act. The presentation and 
disclosure requirements are in accordance with Schedule 

III of the Companies Act 2013 as amended from time to 
time. These financial statements have been prepared on 
historical cost convention on accrual basis except for 
following :
•	 certain Financial Assets and Liabilities and contingent 

consideration which have been measured at 
fair value.

•	 assets held for sale – measured at fair value less cost 
to sell (except for common control entities)

•	 defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at 
fair value

	 The accounting policy provides information on such 
Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at fair value. 

	 The financial statements include the Balance Sheet, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in 
Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and Notes comprising 
a summary of material accounting policies and other 
explanatory information and comparative information in 
respect of the preceding year.

	 The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees 
rounded off to the nearest lakh (’00,000) as permitted by 
Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 except where 
otherwise indicated.

1.2.	Statement of Cash flows
	 The statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and 

presented as per the requirements of IND-AS 7 “Statement 
of Cash flows”. Cash flows are reported using the indirect 
method, whereby profit/loss for the year is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals 
or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and item of income or expenses associated 
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows 
from operating, investing and financing activities of the 
Company are segregated. The Company considers all 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

	 Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of cash flow 
statement comprise of cash at bank, and short-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

1.3.	Operating cycle
	 Based on the nature of its activities, the Company has 

determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of classification of its Assets and Liabilities as 
current and non-current.
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1.4.	Use of estimates, judgements and key 
sources of estimation uncertainty

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with Indian Accounting Standards, requires Management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of Assets and Liabilities and disclosure 
of Contingent Assets and Liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the results of operations during 
the reporting period. Although these estimates are based 
upon Management’s best knowledge of current events 
and actions, actual results may differ from these estimates.

	 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are 
revised, and future periods are affected.

	 Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of 
the financial statements, which may cause a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year, are in respect of recognition 
of revenue, valuation of unbilled receivables, impairment 
of non-current assets, valuation of deferred tax assets, 
provisions and contingent liabilities.

1.4.1.	Impairment of Non - Financial Assets
	 Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset 

or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, 
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal 
and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal 
calculation is based on available data from binding sales 
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets 
or observable market prices less incremental costs for 
disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based 
on a Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The cash flows 
are derived from the budget for the next five years and do 
not include restructuring activities that the Company is not 
yet committed to or significant future investments that will 
enhance the asset’s performance of the Cash Generating 
Unit (CGU) being tested. The recoverable amount is 
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as 
well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth 
rate used for extrapolation purposes. 

	 These estimates are most relevant to disclosure of fair 
value of investment property recorded by the Company.

1.4.2.	Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and 
Intangible Assets

	 The Company reviews the useful lives of property, 
plant and equipment and Intangible Assets as at each 

reporting date. This reassessment may result in change in 
depreciation and amortisation expense in future periods.

1.4.3.	Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets
	 The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax 

assets as at each reporting date.

1.4.4.	Defined Benefit Plans
	 The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other 

post-employment medical benefits and the present value 
of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial 
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in 
the future. These include the determination of the discount 
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the 
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term 
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive 
to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are 
reviewed at each reporting date.

1.4.5.	Fair Value of unlisted Equity Securities
	 The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in 

an active market is determined using valuation techniques. 
The group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods 
and makes assumptions that are mainly based on market 
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

1.4.6.	Determination of Lease Term
	 In determining the lease term, management considers 

all facts and circumstances that create an economic 
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise 
a termination option. Extension options (or periods after 
termination options) are only included in the lease term 
if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not 
terminated).

	 Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. 
They are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that may have a 
financial impact on the company and that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances.

1.5.	Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
	 PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic 

benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company 
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. PPE is 
stated at original cost, net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, 
less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment.

	 Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable 
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition as 
intended by the management. Any trade discounts and 
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rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 
Subsequent expenditures relating to PPE is capitalized 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with these will flow to the Company and the 
cost can be measured reliably.

	 Each part of an item of PPE with a cost that is significant 
in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated 
separately. When significant parts of plant and equipment 
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company 
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful 
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its 
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement, if the recognition criteria are 
satisfied.

	 PPE not ready for the intended use, on the date of 
the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital Work-in-
Progress”. Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE 
outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as 
capital advances under other non-current assets.

	 Depreciation is calculated on a Straight-Line Method on 
the basis of the useful life as specified in Schedule II to 
the Companies Act, 2013. Useful life of assets is reviewed 
at each financial year end to reflect expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic benefits of the asset. 
Depreciation for additions to/deductions from, owned 
Assets is calculated on pro rata basis. 

	 Depreciation charged for impaired assets is adjusted in 
future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying 
amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining 
useful life.

	 An item of PPE and any significant part initially recognised is 
de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or 
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss when the PPE is de-recognised.

	 PPE  costing upto ̀ 1 Lakh (excluding laptop and Ipad) will 
be depreciated in the year of acquisition.

	 Depreciation on PPE and Intangible assets acquired 
through Business Transfer Agreement will be depreciated/
amortised based on remaining useful life of the assets.

	 Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method as 
per the following useful life as specified in Schedule II of 
the Companies Act 2013:

Sr. 
No.

Nature of Assets Estimated useful 
life (In years)Tangible Assets

1 Network Equipment / Central 
Switching 

6

2 Office Equipment # 5
3 Computers and Printers 3
4 Furniture and Fittings 10

	 # Office equipment includes Air conditioners, Web cameras, 
Fire alarm system etc.

	 Repairs and maintenance costs are recognised in the 
statement of Profit and Loss.

1.6.	Intangible Assets
	 Intangible Assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty 

credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and 
cumulative impairment. Intangible Assets are recognised 
when it is probable that the future economic benefits that 
are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and 
the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying 
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the entity and the 
cost can be measured reliably. Intangible Assets not ready 
for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet, are 
disclosed as “Intangible Assets under Development”.

	 Amortisation on impaired Assets is provided by adjusting 
the amortisation charges in the remaining period so as 
to allocate the Asset’s revised carrying amount over its 
remaining useful life.

	 Intangible costing upto `1 Lakh will be amortised in the 
year of acquisition.

	 Amortization is provided using the straight-line method as 
per the following useful life as specified in Schedule II of 
the Company’s Act, 2013: 

Sr. 
No.

Nature of Assets Estimated useful 
life (In years)Intangible Assets

1 Software 3
2 Copyrights, and patents and 

other intellectual property rights
5

3 Goodwill Tested for 
Impairment

annually

4 Contracts with Customers 5
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1.7.	Research and development expenses
	 Development expenses that do not meet the criteria listed 

in point 1.6 above is expensed in the period in which it 
is incurred.

1.8.	Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
	 As at each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of 

Assets is tested for impairment so as to determine:

i.	 The provision for impairment loss, if any; and

ii.	 The reversal of impairment loss recognised in 
previous periods, if any,

	 Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 

	 Recoverable amount is determined:

i.	 In the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the 
net selling price and the value in use;

ii.	 In the case of a cash generating unit (a group of 
Assets that generates identified, independent cash 
flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s net 
selling price and the value in use.

1.9.	Share Capital
	 Ordinary Shares
	 Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs 

directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares 
and share options are recognised as a deduction from 
equity, net of any tax effects.

1.10. Provisions
	 A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a 

present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be 
made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value 
unless the effect of time value of money is not affecting 
materially and are determined based on a best estimate 
required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

1.11.  Financial Instruments
1.11.1.	 Financial Assets
	 The group classifies its financial assets in the following 

measurement categories:

a.	 those to be measured subsequently at fair value 
(either through other comprehensive income, or 
through profit or loss)

b.	 those to be measured at amortised cost

	 The classification depends on the entity’s business model 
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms 
of the cash flows The group classifies its financial assets at 
amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:

•	 the asset is held within a business model whose 
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and

•	 the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest.

	 Financial assets classified at amortised cost comprises of 
trade receivables, Investment in government securities, 
cash and cash equivalents and balances with other banks 
and financial institutions.

	 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will 
either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive 
income. For investments in equity instruments that are not 
held for trading, this will depend on whether the group 
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial 
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in 
other comprehensive income. The group has not made any 
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in fair 
value of its investments in other comprehensive income.

	 The group reclassifies debt instruments when and 
only when its business model for managing those 
assets changes.

1.11.1.1.	 Recognition and derecognition
	 Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are 

recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the 
group commits to purchase or sell the financial asset. 
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to 
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired 
or have been transferred and the group has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

1.11.1.2.	 Measurement 
	 At initial recognition, the group measures a financial asset 

not carried at fair value through profit or loss (excluding 
trade receivables which do not contain a significant 
financing component) at its fair value plus transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of 
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets 
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carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in 
profit or loss.

	 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends 
on the group’s business model for managing the asset and 
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three 
measurement categories into which the group can classify 
its debt instruments:

a)	 Amortised cost: 
	 Assets that are held for collection of contractual 

cash flows where those cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest are measured 
at amortised cost. Interest income from these 
financial assets is included in Other Income using 
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss 
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in 
profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses). 
Impairment losses are presented as separate line 
item in the statement of profit and loss.

b)	 Fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI): 

	 Assets that are held for collection of contractual 
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where 
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments 
of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. 
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through 
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or 
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains 
and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. 
When the financial asset (other than investment in 
equity instruments) is derecognised, the cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified 
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other 
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial 
assets is included in other income using the effective 
interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and 
losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and 
impairment expenses are presented as separate line 
item in statement of profit and loss.

c)	 Fair value through profit or loss: 
	 Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised 

cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that 
is subsequently measured at fair value through profit 
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented 
net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which 
it arises. Interest income from these financial assets 
is included in other income. 

	 All the investments of the company are in government 
securities, Treasury Bills and Government of India Bonds 
that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and 
are measured at amortised cost.

1.11.1.3.	 Impairment of Financial Assets:
	 All of the entity’s financial instruments such as cash and 

cash equivalents, Investments, deposits with banks 
and financial institutions and trade receivables, are at 
amortised cost and have been assessed to have low credit 
risk and accordingly the loss allowance recognized during 
the period was limited to 12 months’ expected losses. 
The identified impairment loss on all financial instruments 
subject to ECL have been assessed as immaterial. 
Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances are 
diversified across major banking counterparts with high 
credit ratings.

1.11.2.	 Financial Liabilities
	 Financial Liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised 

cost using the effective interest method for trade and other 
payables, maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet 
date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to 
the short maturity of these instruments.

1.11.3.	 Offsetting
	 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the 

net amount is presented in the balance sheet when, and 
only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right 
to set off the amount and it intends, either to settle them 
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

1.12. Revenue recognition
	 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised 

when services are rendered to the customer or upon 
completion of service at an amount that reflects the 
consideration entitled in exchange for those services. 
Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration 
which the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange 
for transferring distinct services to a customer as specified 
in the contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf 
of third parties (for example taxes and duties collected 
on behalf of the government). Consideration is generally 
due upon satisfaction of performance obligations and a 
receivable is recognised when it becomes unconditional as 
per Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

1.12.1.	 Revenue from Operations
	 The Company derives revenue primarily from operating 

Bharat Bill Payment System (BBPS), which is licensed 
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by Reserve Bank of India under Payment and Settlement 
Systems Act, 2007. The revenue from this service is 
accounted for all transactions including fetch transactions 
during the reporting year. 

	 Revenue from rendering services is recognised when the 
outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably by 
reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. 

	 The Board of Directors may from time to time decide on the 
fee structure including waiver, if any including delegation to 
a competent authority in this regard.

1.12.2.	 Other Income
	 In case of other Income, revenue is recognised during the 

year in which the services are rendered. 

	 Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, 
taking into account the amount outstanding and at an 
effective interest rate, as applicable. Liquidated damages 
are collected from suppliers as a penalty for non-delivery 
as per contracted terms. Other miscellaneous income 
includes employee bond recovery, sale of scrap, fees 
received towards tender process, etc.

1.13. Employee Benefits
1.13.1.	 Short term Employee Benefits
	 All employee benefits payable within a period of twelve 

months of rendering service are classified as short-term 
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, allowances, 
advances and similar payments paid to the employees of 
the Company are recognised during the period in which 
the employee renders such related services.

	 The Company has recognised the cost due to the fair 
valuation of advances granted to staff which are either 
interest free or at concessional rate. The interest income 
will be recognised over the period of advances.

1.13.2.	 Post-employment benefits
	 i.	 Defined Contribution plans

	 Provident Fund: The Company is a member of the 
Government Provident Fund which is operated by the 
office of the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner 
(RPFC) and the contribution thereof is paid /provided 
for during the period in which the employee renders 
the related service. 

	 ii.	 Defined Benefits plans
	 Gratuity:  In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity 

Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, a 

defined benefit retirement plan (‘The Gratuity Plan’) 
covering eligible employees.  The Gratuity Plan 
provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees 
at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of 
employment of an amount based on the respective 
employee’s salary and the tenure of employment with 
the Company.

	 Gratuity payable to employees is covered by a 
Gratuity Plan provided by Insurance Company. 
The contribution thereof is paid / provided during 
the period in which the employee renders service. 
Gratuity is provided as per actuarial valuation 
as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an 
independent actuary. 

	 Leave Encashment:  The Company provides for 
leave encashment liability of its employees who are 
eligible for encashment of accumulated leave (as 
per prevailing leave policy of the company) based 
on actuarial valuation of the leave encashment 
liability at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an 
independent actuary.

	 The present value of the obligation under such 
defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial 
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. 
The obligation is measured at the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows.  The discount rate used 
for determining the present value of the obligation 
under defined benefit plans, is based on the market 
yield on government securities of a maturity period 
equivalent to the weighted average maturity profile of 
the related obligations at the Balance Sheet date.

	 Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and 
losses, the return on Plan Assets (excluding net 
interest) and any change in the effect of asset ceiling 
(if applicable) are recognised in other comprehensive 
income and is reflected immediately in retained 
earnings and is not reclassified to statement of 
Profit and Loss.

	 In case of inter-company employee transfers within 
the NPCI group, it is treated as continuity in service 
period and as such the Company recognises long 
service provided by its employees by calculating 
the period of service from the date of joining of the 
group and not the date of transfer to the Company. 
Further, in case of such inter-company transfer, the 
transferee company cross charges to the transferor 
company the amount of Gratuity / Leave Encashment 
payable to the employee as on the date of transfer 
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to transferor company. In case, the employee leaves 
before the eligible period of payment of gratuity, the 
above cross charge will be reversed.

1.14. Income Tax
	 Tax expense (Tax income) is the aggregate amount 

included in the determination of Profit or Loss for the period 
in respect of Current Tax and Deferred Tax. Current Tax is 
measured as the amount expected to be paid to the Tax 
Authorities in accordance with the provision of Income Tax 
Act, 1961. The Company offsets, on a year on year basis, 
the Current Tax Assets and Liabilities, where it has a legally 
enforceable right and where it intends to settle such Assets 
and Liabilities on a net basis.

	 Deferred Tax is recognised on temporary difference 
between carrying amounts of Assets and Liabilities in the 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases 
used in the computation of taxable profits. Deferred Tax 
Liabilities and Assets are measured based on the tax rates 
and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted as at the 
Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax Liabilities are recognised 
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred Tax Assets 
are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable 
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which such Deferred Tax Assets can be 
realised. The Company offsets, on a year on year basis, 
the Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities, where it has a 
legally enforceable right and where it intends to settle such 
Assets and Liabilities on a net basis.

	 Transaction or event which is recognised outside the 
statement of Profit and Loss, either in other comprehensive 
income or in equity, if any is recorded along with the tax as 
applicable.

1.15. Earnings per share
	 Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing 

the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the 
company by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period. 
Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing 
the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the 
company by the weighted average number of equity 
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity 
share and also the weighted average number of equity 
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of 
all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential 
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had 
the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. 
the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). 
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as 

of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later 
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined 
independently for each period presented. 

	 The number of equity shares and dilutive potential 
equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods 
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues 
including for changes effected prior to the approval of the 
financial statements by the Board of Directors.

1.16. Contingent Liabilities
	 The contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from 

past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
entity or a present obligation that arises from past events 
but is not recognised because it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the 
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 
Contingent Liabilities, if any, are disclosed in the Notes 
to Accounts.

1.17. Commitments
	 Commitments are future liabilities for contractual 

expenditure. Commitments are classified and disclosed 
as follows:

i.	 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 
executed on capital account and not provided for

ii.	 Uncalled liability on shares and other investments 
partly paid and

iii.	 Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the 
extent they are considered material and relevant in 
the opinion of management. 

	 Other commitments related to sales/procurements made 
in the normal course of business are not disclosed to avoid 
excessive details.

1.18. Foreign Currency Transactions
i.	 INR is the currency of the primary economic 

environment in which the entity operates (‘the 
functional currency’). The Company/Group 
has adopted INR as the presentation currency. 
The functional currency of the Company is 
Indian rupee.

ii.	 Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial 
recognition using the exchange rate at the date 
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of the transaction. At each Balance Sheet date, 
foreign currency monetary items are reported using 
the closing rate. Non-monetary items carried at fair 
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the reporting 
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in 
terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not 
retranslated. Exchange differences that arise on 
settlement of monetary items or on reporting of 
monetary items at each reporting date at the closing 

rate are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 
in the period in which they arise.

1.19. Recent accounting pronouncements:
	 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard 

or amendments to the existing standards under Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time 
to time. There is no such notification which would have 
been applicable from 1st April 2024.
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2	 NOTES TO ACCOUNTS						    
2.01	Property, Plant and Equipment
	 Following are the changes in the carrying value of the Property, Plant and Equipment for the year ended 31st March 2025

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Asset Group  GROSS BLOCK  ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  NET BLOCK 

As at  
01-Apr- 

2024

Additions Deletions As at 
31-Mar- 

2025

As at  
01-Apr- 

2024

Additions Deletions/ 
Adjustments

As at 
31-Mar- 

2025

As at 
31-Mar- 

2025

As at 
31-Mar- 

2024

Computers  104.02  110.22  -    214.24  20.36  46.15  -    66.51  147.73  83.66 
Network Equipment  122.69  85.00  -    207.69  73.65  24.47  -    98.12  109.57  49.04 
Switching 
Equipment / 
Central Processors

 276.45  -    -    276.45  228.22  17.63  -    245.85  30.60  48.23 

Office Equipment  0.29  0.19  -    0.48  0.29  0.19  -    0.48  -    -   
TOTAL  503.45  195.41  -    698.86  322.52  88.44  -    410.96  287.90  180.93 

Notes:
 a) There has been no revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment during the current and previous year. 

	 Following are the changes in the carrying value of the Property, Plant and Equipment for the year ended 31st March 2024
 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 

Asset Group  GROSS BLOCK  ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  NET BLOCK 
As at  

01-Apr- 
2023

Additions Deletions As at 
31-Mar- 

2024

As at  
01-Apr- 

2023

Additions Deletions/ 
Adjustments

As at 
31-Mar- 

2024

As at 
31-Mar- 

2024

As at 
31-Mar- 

2023

Computers  12.77  91.25  -    104.02  10.95  9.41  -    20.36  83.66  1.82 
Network Equipment  52.37  70.32  -    122.69  51.46  22.19  -    73.65  49.04  0.91 
Switching 
Equipment / 
Central Processors

 276.45  -    -    276.45  207.89  20.33  -    228.22  48.23  68.56 

Office Equipment  0.29  -    -    0.29  0.28  0.01  -    0.29  -    0.01 
TOTAL  341.88  161.57  -    503.45  270.58  51.94  -    322.52  180.93  71.30 

Notes:
 a) There has been no revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment during the current and previous year. 

	 Following are the changes in the carrying value of the Property, Plant and Equipment for the year ended 1st April 2023
 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 

Asset Group  GROSS BLOCK  ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  NET BLOCK 
As at  

01-Apr- 
2022

Additions Deletions As at 
01-Apr- 

2023

As at  
01-Apr- 

2022

Additions Deletions/ 
Adjustments

As at 
01-Apr- 

2023

As at 
01-Apr- 

2023

As at 
31-Mar- 

2022

Computers  12.77  -    -    12.77  6.31  4.64  -    10.95  1.82  6.46 
Network Equipment  52.37  -    -    52.37  37.70  13.76  -    51.46  0.91  14.67 
Switching 
Equipment / 
Central Processors

 231.29  45.16  -    276.45  135.55  72.34  -    207.89  68.56  95.74 

Office Equipment  0.29  -    -    0.29  0.17  0.11  -    0.28  0.01  0.12 
TOTAL  296.72  45.16  -    341.88  179.73  90.85  -    270.58  71.30  116.99 

Notes:
 a) There has been no revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment during the current and previous year. 
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2.02	Capital Work - in progress
	 Capital Work in Progress ( CWIP ) as on 31st March 2025

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Less 
than 1 year

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More years 
than 3 years

Projects in progress  -    -    -    -    -   
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -    -    -   

Details of Capital Work-in-Progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to Original 
Plan as on 31st March 2025

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Particulars To be completed in Total

Less 
than 1 year

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More years 
than 3 years

Projects in progress
NIL  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -    -    -   

Capital Work in Progress ( CWIP ) as on 31st March 2024

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Less 
than 1 year

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More years 
than 3 years

Projects in progress  0.61  -    -    -    0.61 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  0.61  -    -    -    0.61 
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Details of Capital Work-in-Progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to Original 
Plan as on 31st March 2024

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Particulars To be completed in Total

Less 
than 1 year

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More years 
than 3 years

Projects in progress
NIL  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -    -    -   

Capital Work - in progress (CWIP) as on 1st April 2023

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Less 
than 1 year

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More years 
than 3 years

Projects in progress  -    -    -    -    -   
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -    -    -   

Details of Capital Work-in-Progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to Original 
Plan as on 1st April 2023

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Particulars To be completed in Total

Less 
than 1 year

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More years 
than 3 years

Projects in progress
NIL  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  -    -    -    -    -   

2.03	Intangible Assets
Following are the changes in the carrying value of Intangible Assets for the year ended 31st March 2025 

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Asset Group  GROSS BLOCK  ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION  NET BLOCK 

As at  
01-Apr- 

2024

Additions Deletions As at 
31-Mar- 

2025

As at  
01-Apr- 

2024

Additions Deletions/ 
Adjustments

As at 
31-Mar- 

2025

As at 
31-Mar- 

2025

As at 
31-Mar- 

2024

Computer Software  868.01  2,681.36  -    3,549.37  347.96  716.27  -    1,064.23  2,485.14  520.05 
BBPS  0.01  -    -    0.01  0.01  -    -    0.01  -    -   
IPR - 
BHARAT BILLPAY

 1,888.00  -    -    1,888.00  1,133.83  377.60  -    1,511.43  376.57  754.17 

Contracts 
with Customers

 1,210.00  -    -    1,210.00  726.66  242.00  -    968.66  241.34  483.34 

Goodwill on 
Purchase 
consideration

 207.40  -    -    207.40  -    -    -    -    207.40  207.40 

TOTAL  4,173.42  2,681.36  -    6,854.78  2,208.46  1,335.87  -    3,544.33  3,310.45  1,964.96 
Note:
a) There has been no revaluation of  Intangible Assets during the current and previous period.
b) The business of BBPS is on growth phase and as such there is no requirement for impairment of Goodwill appearing in the balance sheet.
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Following are the changes in the carrying value of Intangible Assets for the year ended 31st March 2024 
 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 

Asset Group  GROSS BLOCK  ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION  NET BLOCK 
As at  

01-Apr- 
2023

Additions Deletions As at 
31-Mar- 

2024

As at  
01-Apr- 

2023

Additions Deletions/ 
Adjustments

As at 
31-Mar- 

2024

As at 
31-Mar- 

2024

As at 
31-Mar- 

2023

Computer Software  346.81  521.20  -    868.01  236.16  111.89  0.09  347.96  520.05  110.65 
BBPS  0.01  -    -    0.01  0.01  -    -    0.01  -    -   
IPR - 
BHARAT BILLPAY

 1,888.00  -    -    1,888.00  755.20  378.63  -    1,133.83  754.17  1,132.80 

Contracts 
with Customers

 1,210.00  -    -    1,210.00  484.00  242.66  -    726.66  483.34  726.00 

Goodwill on 
Purchase 
consideration

 207.40  -    -    207.40  -    -    -    207.40  207.40 

TOTAL  3,652.22  521.20  -    4,173.42  1,475.37  733.18  0.09  2,208.46  1,964.96  2,176.85 
Note:
a) There has been no revaluation of  Intangible Assets during the current and previous period.
b) The business of BBPS is on growth phase and as such there is no requirement for impairment of Goodwill appearing in the balance sheet.

Following are the changes in the carrying value of Intangible Assets for the year ended 1st April 2023 
 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 

Asset Group  GROSS BLOCK  ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION  NET BLOCK 
As at  

01-Apr- 
2022

Additions Deletions As at 
01-Apr- 

2023

As at  
01-Apr- 

2022

Additions Deletions/ 
Adjustments

As at 
01-Apr- 

2023

As at 
01-Apr- 

2023

As at 
31-Mar- 

2022

Computer Software  346.81  -    -    346.81  79.79  156.37  -    236.16  110.65  267.02 
BBPS  0.01  -    -    0.01  0.01  -    -    0.01  -    -   
IPR - 
BHARAT BILLPAY

 1,888.00  -    -    1,888.00  377.60  377.60  -    755.20  1,132.80  1,510.40 

Contracts 
with Customers

 1,210.00  -    -    1,210.00  242.00  242.00  -    484.00  726.00  968.00 

Goodwill on 
Purchase 
consideration

 207.40  -    -    207.40  -    -    -    -    207.40  207.40 

TOTAL  3,652.22  -    -    3,652.22  699.40  775.97  -    1,475.37  2,176.85  2,952.82 
Note:
a) There has been no revaluation of  Intangible Assets during the current and previous period.
b) The business of BBPS is on growth phase and as such there is no requirement for impairment of Goodwill appearing in the balance sheet.

2.04 Intangible Assets Under Development (IAUD) as on 31st March 2025
 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 

Particulars Amount in IAUD for a period of Total
Less 

than 1 year
1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More years 

than 3 years

Projects in progress  102.39  122.20  -    -    224.59 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  102.39  122.20  -    -    224.59 
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Intangible Assets Under Development whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to 
Original Plan as on 31st March 2025

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Particulars To be completed in Total

Less 
than 1 year

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More years 
than 3 years

Projects in progress
-  -   
Total  -    -    -    -    -   

Intangible Assets Under Development (IAUD) as on 31st March 2024

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Particulars Amount in IAUD for a period of Total

Less 
than 1 year

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More years 
than 3 years

Projects in progress  876.85  -    -    -    876.85 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  876.85  -    -    -    876.85 

Intangible Assets Under Development whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to 
Original Plan as on 31st March 2024

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Particulars To be completed in Total

Less 
than 1 year

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More years 
than 3 years

Projects in progress
(i) BOAT Deployment*  36.60  36.60 
Total  36.60  -    -    -    36.60 

*The project has been over due as original project date for :.
     (i) Biller On boarding and Automated Testing Deployment Project got delayed due to technical issues during the deployment.

Intangible Assets Under Development (IAUD) as on 1st April 2023

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Particulars Amount in IAUD for a period of Total

Less 
than 1 year

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More years 
than 3 years

Projects in progress  209.73  -    -    -    209.73 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  209.73  -    -    -    209.73 
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Intangible Assets Under Development whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to 
Original Plan as on 1st April 2023

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Particulars To be completed in Total

Less 
than 1 year

1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More years 
than 3 years

Projects in progress
(i) UPMS & Support*  -    68.00  -    -    68.00 
(ii) BOAT Deployment*  10.50  -    -    -    10.50 
Total  10.50  68.00  -    -    78.50 

*The project has been over due as original project date for :
     (i) Services from the vendor providing UPMS Phase 3 and UPMS Support project got impacted resulting in delay in the project.
     (ii) Biller On boarding and Automated Testing Deployment Project got delayed due to technical issues during the deployment.

2.05 Investments (Non-Current) (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Face Value  

per Unit  
(in ₹)

Qty as at As at 
31st March

2025
Audited

As at 
31st March 

2024
Restated

As at 
1st April 

2023
Restated

31st March
2025

Audited

31st March 
2024

Restated

1st April 
2023

Restated

Quoted Investments 
carried at amortised cost
Investments in Government 
Securities
with Maturity more 
than 12 months

G-Sec 6.89% 2025  100  -   -   2,00,000  -   -   199.16 
G-Sec 7.38% 2027  100  2,00,000  2,00,000  2,00,000  200.94  201.32  201.67 
G-Sec 7.06% 2028  100  2,00,000  2,00,000  -   200.09  200.12  -  
G-Sec 7.10% 2029  100  5,10,000  5,10,000  5,10,000  505.43  504.49  503.62 
G-Sec 7.17% 2030  100  3,00,000  3,00,000  -   300.33  300.38  -  
G-Sec 7.26% 2032  100  2,00,000  2,00,000  2,00,000  199.54  199.49  199.45 

Total  1,406.33  1,405.80  1,103.90 
Aggregate amount of quoted 
investments

 1,406.33  1,405.80  1,103.90 

Aggregate Market Value of 
quoted investments

 1,445.48  1,416.47  1,107.07 

Aggregate amount of 
impairment in value of 
investments

 -   -   -  

The Company has invested in Central Government Securities and Treasury Bills which are sovereign in nature. 
Hence, Company has not provided for any Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on investments.
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2.06 Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Security Deposits  1.65  1.65  1.65 
Sub Total (A)  1.65  1.65  1.65 
Earmarked Deposits 
Term Deposits with Banks
Original maturity more than 12 months and with current maturity 
more than 12 months (Callable)
- SGM BBPS  -   -   1,620.00 
- SGM NOCS  0.10  -   -  
Sub Total (B)  0.10  -   1,620.00 
Deposits with Banks
Original maturity more than 12 months and with current maturity 
more than 12 months (Callable)

 -   -   2,200.00 

Sub Total (C)  -   -   2,200.00 
Total (A + B + C)  1.75  1.65  3,821.65 

2.07 Deferred Tax Assets (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Deferred Tax Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment*  -   18.75  -  
Provision for Gratuity  -   16.58  -  
Provision for Leave Encashment  -   5.27  -  
Other Comprehensive Income  -   11.53  -  
Preliminary Expenses  -   5.62  -  
Total  -   57.75  -  
*Goodwill, which was considered for Deferred Tax in the year ended 31-Mar-2023, is now excluded in the year ended 
31st March 2024.

2.08 Non-Current Tax Asset (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Advance Income Tax, TDS & TCS Receivable  1,069.77  109.44  70.14 
Total  1,069.77  109.44  70.14 
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2.09 Investments (Current) (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Face Value  

per Unit  
(in ₹)

Qty as at As at 
31st March

2025
Audited

As at 
31st March 

2024
Restated

As at 
1st April  

2023
Restated

31st March
2025

Audited

31st March 
2024

Restated

1st April  
2023

Restated
Quoted Investments 
carried at amortised cost
Investments in 
Government Securities 
with maturity less 
than 12 months
G-Sec 6.89% 2025  100  -   2,00,000  -   -   199.62  -  
Sub Total (A)  -   199.62  -  
Treasury Bills
with maturity more 
than 3 months but less 
than 12 months

 100  -   -   9,20,000  -   -   864.30 

Sub Total (B)  -   -   864.30 
Total (A + B)  -   199.62  864.30 
Aggregate amount of quoted investments  -   199.62  864.30 
Aggregate Market Value of quoted investments  -   199.71  880.92 
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of  Investments  -  -  - 
The Company has invested in Central Government Securities and Treasury Bills which are sovereign in nature. Hence, Company has not 
provided for any Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on investments.

2.10 Trade Receivables (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Unsecured considered good
Receivables from National Payments Corporation of India  -   -   16.31 
Others  202.03  187.57  83.34 
Total  202.03  187.57  99.65 
The Company has exposure to regulated entities, hence the credit risk is limited. All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for 
default on a monthly basis and the risk is mitigated by timely monitoring of receivables. Based on historical experience of collecting 
receivables, supported by the level of default, the credit risk is low. Accordingly, our provision for expected credit loss (ECL) on trade 
receivable is not material.



32

Annual Report 2024-25

Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March 2025

NPCI Bharat BillPay Ltd

Ageing of Trade Receivables as on 31st March 2025 (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date 

of payments
Not due Total

Less than 
 6 months

6 months  
– 1 year

1-2  
years

2 - 3  
years

More than  
3 years

Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
considered good

 35.97  -   -   -   -   -   35.97 

Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
significant increase in credit risk

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
credit impaired

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
considered good

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
significant increase in credit risk

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
credit impaired

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Total  35.97  -   -   -   -   -   35.97 
Unbilled Revenue  166.06 
Total  202.03 

Ageing of Trade Receivables as on 31st March 2024 (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date 

of payments
Not due Total

Less than 
 6 months

6 months  
– 1 year

1-2  
years

2 - 3  
years

More than  
3 years

Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
considered good

 17.57  -   -   -   -   -   17.57 

Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
significant increase in credit risk

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
credit impaired

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
considered good

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
significant increase in credit risk

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
credit impaired

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Total  17.57  -   -   -   -   -   17.57 
Unbilled Revenue  170.00 
Total  187.57 
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Ageing of Trade Receivables as on 1st April 2023 (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date 

of payments
Not due Total

Less than 
 6 months

6 months  
– 1 year

1-2  
years

2 - 3  
years

More than  
3 years

Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
considered good

 33.81  -   -   -   -   -   33.81 

Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
significant increase in credit risk

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
credit impaired

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
considered good

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
significant increase in credit risk

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed Trade Receivables - 
credit impaired

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Total  33.81  -   -   -   -   -   33.81 
Unbilled Revenue  65.84 
Total  99.65 

2.11 Cash and Cash Equivalent (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Balances with Banks
Current account (Own Fund)  3,039.30  238.67  187.12 
Deposits with Banks
Original maturity less than 3 months and with current maturity less 
than 3 months (Callable)

 -   350.00  1,000.00 

 Total  3,039.30  588.67  1,187.12 
For better cash management, the Company has arrangement with certain Banks where the funds exceeding the specified limit are 
automatically transferred to flexi deposit account as short term deposit.
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2.12 Other Bank Balances (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Earmarked Funds
Balances with Banks

Current account (SGM Contribution)
Term deposits with banks
with Original maturity less than 3 months and current 
maturity less than 3 months (Callable)

- SGM BBPS  -   500.00  -  
with Original maturity more than 3 months to 12 months 
and current maturity less than 3 months (Callable)

- SGM BBPS  2,750.00  1,610.00  180.00 
with Original maturity more than 3 months to 12 months 
and current maturity more than 3 months to 12 months 
(Callable)

- SGM BBPS  21,020.00  3,990.00  1,295.00 
- SGM BBPS Reserve  500.00  -   -  
- SGM NOCS Reserve  500.00  -   -  
- Technology Reserve  366.42  -   -  
- Risk Cover Reserve  366.42  -   -  

Sub Total (A)  25,502.84  6,100.00  1,475.00 
Term Deposits with Banks

Original maturity 3 month to 12 months but current maturity 
less than 3 months (Callable)

 3,300.00  2,701.00  398.00 

Original maturity 3 month to 12 months and current maturity 
3 months to 12 months (Callable)

 7,267.16  5,100.00  2,000.00 

Sub Total (B)  10,567.16  7,801.00  2,398.00 
Total (A + B)  36,070.00  13,901.00  3,873.00 
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2.13 Other Financial Assets (Current) (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Advances to Employees  16.18  4.80  8.89 
Receivable from HDFC Life Insurance Company Limited  -   -   5.50 
Receivable from Gratuity Trust  17.15  34.62  -  
Prepaid Card  1.00  1.00  -  
Other Receivable  3.90  2.54  -  
Less: Provision for Doubtful Other Receivables  (2.00)  -   -  
Interest Accrued but not due 

- Other than SGM  34.00  39.08  45.70 
- Government Securities, Treasury Bills & Government Bonds  38.65  41.89  42.24 
- SGM BBPS  86.46  18.87  12.08 
- SGM NOCS  -   0.25  -  

Earmarked Funds
Term deposits with banks

Original maturity more than 12 months and current 
maturity less than 3 months (Callable)

- SGM BBPS  -   -   1,409.00 
Original maturity more than 12 months and current 
maturity more than 3 months to 12 months (Callable)

- SGM BBPS  -   1,720.00  490.00 
- SGM NOCS  34.90  25.00  -  
- SGM BBPS Reserve  -   500.00  -  
- SGM NOCS Reserve  -   500.00  -  
- Risk Cover Reserve  -   173.00  -  
- Technology Reserve  -   173.00  -  

Term deposits with banks
Original maturity more than 12 months but current maturity 
less than 3 months (Callable)

 -   -   2,300.00 

Original maturity more than 12 months but current maturity 
3 months to 12 months (Callable)

 -   854.00  -  

Total  230.24  4,088.05  4,313.41 
The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks, investments in marketable 
debt instruments including government securities. The Company has diversified portfolio of investment with various 
number of counter-parties which have secure credit ratings, hence the risk is reduced. Individual risk limits are set for 
each counter-party based on credit rating and past experience. Credit limits and concentration of exposures are actively 
monitored by the Company’s Treasury team. The investment of the Company is in high grade investment categories 
reducing the credit risk exposure to near minimal.
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2.14 Other Current Assets (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Prepaid Expenses*  9.64  42.84  33.02 
Advances to Vendors  179.06  54.09  17.94 
GST Input Credit  523.43  117.74  78.84 
Total  712.13  214.67  129.80 
*The prepaid expenses consist of un-expired portion of annual maintenance expenses and subscription. 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
2.15 Equity Share Capital (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  As at 
31st March 2025

Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Authorised Share Capital
Opening Balance (CY 1,00,00,000 & PY 1,00,00,000 Equity 
Shares of ₹ 100 each)

 10,000.00  10,000.00  10,000.00 

Addition during the year (CY Nil & PY Nil Equity Shares of 
₹ 100 each)

 -  - -

Closing Balance (CY 1,00,00,000 & PY 1,00,00,000 Equity 
Shares of ₹ 100 each)

 10,000.00  10,000.00  10,000.00 

Issued Share Capital
Opening Balance (CY 1,00,00,000 & PY 1,00,00,000 Equity 
Shares of ₹ 100 each)

 10,000.00  10,000.00  10,000.00 

Addition during the year (CY Nil & PY Nil Equity Shares of 
₹ 100 each)

 -  - -

Closing Balance (CY 1,00,00,000 & PY 1,00,00,000 Equity 
Shares of ₹ 100 each)

 10,000.00  10,000.00  10,000.00 

Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
Opening Balance (CY 1,00,00,000 & PY 1,00,00,000 Equity 
Shares of ₹ 100 each)

 10,000.00  10,000.00  10,000.00 

Addition during the year (CY Nil & PY Nil Equity Shares of 
₹ 100 each)

 -   -   -  

Closing Balance (CY 1,00,00,000 & PY 1,00,00,000 Equity 
Shares of ₹ 100 each)

 10,000.00  10,000.00  10,000.00 

Total Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital  10,000.00  10,000.00  10,000.00 

Reconciliation of shares outstanding as at the beginning and year ended 
31st March 2025: (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Equity Shares

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Number Amount Number Amount

Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 1,00,00,000  10,000.00 1,00,00,000  10,000.00 
Addition during the year  -   -   -   -  
Shares outstanding as at the end of the year 1,00,00,000  10,000.00 1,00,00,000  10,000.00 
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Reconciliation of shares outstanding as at the beginning and year ended 
31st March 2024: (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Equity Shares

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount

Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 1,00,00,000  10,000.00 1,00,00,000  10,000.00 
Addition during the year  -   -   -   -  
Shares outstanding as at the end of the year 1,00,00,000  10,000.00 1,00,00,000  10,000.00 

Details of shares held by Holding Company and nominees of Holding Company in aggregate
Particulars  As at 31st March 2025  As at 31st March 2024  % of change  

during the year Number  % of total shares Number  % of total shares 
Equity shares of ₹ 100 each  1,00,00,000 100% 1,00,00,000 100%  -  

Particulars  As at 31st March 2024  As at 31st March 2023  % of change  
during the year Number  % of total shares Number  % of total shares 

Equity shares of ₹ 100 each  1,00,00,000 100% 1,00,00,000 100%  -  

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares: 
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of ₹ 100 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 
to one vote per share.

In the period of five years immediately preceding 31st March, 2024:
i. The Company has not allotted any bonus shares.
ii. The Company has not allotted any equity shares as fully paid up without payment being received in cash.

Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% share in the Company
Name of Shareholder Change of Equity

 As at 31st March 2025  As at 31st March 2024 
Number  Holding Number  Holding 

National Payments Corporation of India  1,00,00,000 100%  1,00,00,000 100%

Name of Shareholder Change of Equity
 As at 31st March 2024  As at 31st March 2023 
Number Holding Number  Holding 

National Payments Corporation of India  1,00,00,000 100%  1,00,00,000 100%

2.15A	 Other Equity
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
 As at 

31st March 2024
As at 

1st April 2023

Retained Earnings
Opening balance  2,950.16  1,757.60  371.74 
Profit for the year (net of reserves)  1,545.28  1,192.56  1,385.86 
Closing balance (A)  4,495.44  2,950.16  1,757.60 
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Particulars  As at 
31st March 2025

 As at 
31st March 2024

As at 
1st April 2023

Other items of Other Comprehensive Income
Opening balance  (28.07)  (4.63)  13.82 
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (net of Tax)  (6.99)  (23.44)  (18.45)
Closing balance (B)  (35.06)  (28.07)  (4.63)
Technology Reserve
Opening balance  173.00  -   -  
Transfer during the year  193.42  173.00  -  
Closing balance (C)  366.42  173.00  -  
Risk Cover Reserve
Opening balance  173.00  -   -  
Transfer during the year  193.42  173.00  -  
Closing balance (D)  366.42  173.00  -  
Product SGM Reserve
Opening balance  1,306.37  118.75  38.95 
Transfer during the year  425.93  1,187.62  79.80 
Closing balance (E)  1,732.30  1,306.37  118.75 
TOTAL  6,925.52  4,574.46  1,871.72 

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Technology Reserves:

The company has created Technology Reserve to rebuild/re-establish the Technology infrastructure and to support 
ongoing and future investment in technology innovation.

(ii) Risk Reserves:
The company has created a Risk Reserve to provide for potential high-impact operational risks, including but not limited 
to cyber threats, fraud, incorrect settlements, and delays in settlements processes. This reserve aims to enhance financial 
resilience and ensure operational continuity.

(iii) Product Reserve:	
Product SGM Reserve is created as per the Policy on Standardised Settlement Guarantee Mechanism as approved by RBI. 
These reserves are to be utilised as Company’s contribution to meet the exigencies of settlement risk in the online products.

2.17 Other financial liabilities (Non-Current) (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

SGM - BBPS Contribution  23,709.06  7,723.63  4,909.99 
SGM - NOCS Contribution  35.00  25.00  -  
Total  23,744.06  7,748.63  4,909.99 
‘Company has control over the funds received towards SGM contribution from Member Banks for the period the funds are held by it 
and the investments made with such funds. However, there is also an obligation to repay the funds to the Member Banks as per the 
Standardised SGM policy approved by RBI. Accordingly, the Company recognises SGM contribution received from Member Banks as 
a ‘liability’ and funds invested from such contributions as ‘assets’ in the financial statements. The SGM balance held by the Company 
as well as the related amounts in the form of cash / investments are restricted in nature and can only be used for specified purposes as 
mentioned in Standardised SGM Policy. 
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SGM – BBPS Contribution (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

SGM – BBPS Balance at the beginning of the year  7,723.63  4,909.99  3,677.83 
Add : Contribution received during the year  22,661.36  13,767.26  1,232.16 
Less : Contribution refunded during the year  (6,675.93)  (10,953.63)  -   
Sub Total (A) : SGM - BBPS balance at the end of the year  23,709.06  7,723.63  4,909.99 
SGM - NOCS (Other) balance at the beginning of the year  305.90  118.75  38.95 
Interest received on SGM- BBPS investments  978.74  411.87  225.59 
Less: LOC charges  (367.25)  (143.56)  (110.48)
Less: Salary expense  (10.96)  (4.28)  (2.53)
Less: Withheld Tax  (174.87)  (76.89)  (32.79)
Sub Total (B) : SGM - BBPS (Other) balance at the end of the year  731.55  305.90  118.75 
Total SGM - NOCS [ Including Others] balance at the end 
of the year (A + B)

 24,440.61  8,029.52  5,028.74 

RBI vide letter CO.DPSS.OVRST.No.S57/06-07-012/2021-2022 dated 01st May, 2021 had given consent for the Standardised 
Settlement Guarantee Mechanism Policy proposed by the Company.  In line with the policy, the Company has collected from Member 
Banks availing BBPS services, deposits towards the Settlement Guarantee Mechanism (SGM). The amount of SGM contribution  as on 
31st March, 2025 is ₹ 23,709.06 lakh. The SGM Contribution is placed as earmarked fixed deposits.
The amount in SGM - BBPS (Other) is the net income on SGM BBPS - earmarked Investments (net off SGM related and Income Tax 
expenses) since inception of SGM Contribution.

SGM – NOCS Contribution  (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

SGM - NOCS balance at the beginning of the year  25.00  -   -  
Add : Contribution received during the year  10.00  25.00  -  
Less : Contribution refunded during the year  -   -   -  
Sub Total (A) : SGM - NOCS balance at the end of the year  35.00  25.00  -  
SGM - NOCS (Other) balance at the beginning of the year  0.48  -   -  
Interest received on SGM- NOCS investments  1.92  0.91  -  
Less: LOC charges  (1.48)  (0.23)  -  
Less: Salary expense  (0.04)  (0.01)  -  
Less: Withheld Tax  (0.11)  (0.20)  -  
Sub Total (B) : SGM - NOCS (Other) balance at the end of the year  0.76  0.48  -  
Total SGM - NOCS [ Including Others] balance at the end 
of the year (A + B)

 35.76  25.48  -  

RBI vide letter CO.DPSS.OVRST.No.S57/06-07-012/2021-2022 dated 01st May, 2021 had given consent for the Standardised 
Settlement Guarantee Mechanism Policy proposed by the Company. In line with the policy, the Company has collected from Member 
Banks availing NOCS services, deposits towards the Settlement Guarantee Mechanism (SGM). The amount of SGM contribution as on 
31st March, 2025 is ₹ 35 lakh. The SGM Contribution is placed as earmarked fixed deposits.
The amount in SGM - NOCS (Other) is the net income on SGM BBPS - earmarked Investments (net off SGM related and Income Tax 
expenses) since inception of SGM Contribution. 
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2.18 Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, Plant and Equipment *  40.38  -   78.21 
Investment in Government Securities and Treasury Bills #  -   -   5.76 

Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for Gratuity  (8.30)  -   (7.02)
Provision for Leave Encashment  (8.32)  -   (3.01)
Preliminary Expenses  -   -   (11.24)
Other Comprehensive Income  (11.79)  -   (0.47)

Total  11.97  -   62.23 
* Goodwill, which was considered for Deferred Tax as at 30-Sep-2023, is been excluded as at 31-Mar-2024 onwards.
# Held till maturity instruments were considered for Deferred Tax in quarter ended 30-Sep-2023, is now excluded in the year ended 
31-Mar-2024 onwards.
The effective tax rate from Apr’24 onwards is 25.168% and upto Mar’24 was 29.12% and Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax 
Liabilities have been adjusted accordingly. 

Deferred tax relates to the following: (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Balance Sheet Other Comprehensive  

Income
Statement of 

profit and Loss
31st March  

2025
31st March  

2024
1st April 

2023
31st March  

2025
31st March  

2024
31st March  

2025
31st March  

2024

Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)
Property, Plant and Equipment*  (40.38)  30.10  (78.21)  -   -   (70.48)  108.31 
Provision for Gratuity  8.30  22.57  7.02  -   -   (14.27)  15.55 
Provision for Leave Encashment  8.32  9.91  3.01  -   -   (1.59)  6.90 
Other Comprehensive Income  11.79  11.94  0.47  (0.15)  11.47  -   -  
Preliminary Expenses  -   1.21  11.24  -   -   (1.21)  (10.03)
Investment in Government 
Securities and Treasury Bills

 -   -   (5.76)  -   -   -   5.76 

Total  (11.97)  75.73  (62.23)  (0.15)  11.47  (87.55)  126.49 

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Deferred Tax Assets Deferred Tax Liabilities

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Opening Balance as on 1st April  169.73  21.74  (94.00)  (83.97)
Tax income during the year recognised in 
profit or loss

 -   136.52  (87.55)  (10.03)

Remeasurements Recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Loss

 -   11.47  (0.15)  -  

Closing Balance as on 31st March  169.73  169.73  (181.70)  (94.00)
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2.19 Provisions (Non-Current) (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Provision for Gratuity (net)  32.97  56.95  24.11 
Provision for Leave encashment (net)  33.06  18.09  10.35 
Total  66.03  75.04  34.46 

2.20 Trade Payables (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Micro and Small Enterprises  1,764.40  -   -  
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises

Payable to National Payments Corporation of India  524.93  368.43  103.60 
Others  1,998.57  275.26  528.29 

Total  4,287.90  643.69  631.89 

Ageing of Trade Payables as at 31-Mar-2025 (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Less than  

1 year
1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than  

3 years
Total Not Due Total

Micro and Small Enterprises  1,764.40  -   -   -   1,764.40  -   1,764.40 
Other than Micro and Small 
Enterprises

 828.22  -   -   -   828.22  -   828.22 

Disputed dues - Micro and 
Small Enterprises

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed dues - Other than 
Micro and Small Enterprises

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Total  2,592.62  -   -   -   2,592.62  -   2,592.62 
Unbilled dues  1,695.28 
Total  4,287.90 

Ageing of Trade Payables as at 31st March 2024 (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Less than  

1 year
1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than  

3 years
Total Not Due Total

Micro and Small Enterprises  -   -   -   -   -   -   -  
Other than Micro and Small 
Enterprises

 73.73  -   -   -   73.73  81.94  155.67 

Disputed dues - Micro and 
Small Enterprises

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed dues - Other than 
Micro and Small Enterprises

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Total  73.73  -   -   -   73.73  81.94  155.67 
Unbilled dues  488.02 
Total  643.69 
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Ageing of Trade Payables as at 1st April 2023 (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars Less than  

1 year
1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than  

3 years
Total Not Due Total

Micro and Small Enterprises  -   -   -   -   -   -   -  
Other than Micro and Small 
Enterprises

 348.56  -   -   -   348.56  -   348.56 

Disputed dues - Micro and 
Small Enterprises

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Disputed dues - Other than 
Micro and Small Enterprises

 -   -   -   -   -   -   -  

Total  348.56  -   -   -   348.56  -   348.56 
Unbilled dues  283.33 
Total  631.89 

2.21 Other Financial Liabilities (Current) (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Earnest Money Deposits  -   11.42  1.42 
Capital Creditors

National Payments Corporation of India  -   49.61  -  
Other  82.21  12.55  -  

Other Payables  3.36  6.24  4.94 
Employee related liabilities  412.49  234.62  177.34 
Total  498.06  314.44  183.70 

The movement in the provision for expenses including the Non-Current Provisions (refer note 2.17), unbilled dues (refer note 
2.18) and Employee related liabilities (refer note 2.19) is as follows:

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Balance as at the beginning of the year  770.11  495.14  296.03 
Provision during the year  4,274.62  1,641.71  529.30 
Less : Provision reversed during the year  (62.32)  (71.08)  (34.47)
Less : Provision utilised during the year  (2,836.77)  (1,295.66)  (295.72)
Balance as at the end of the Year  2,145.64  770.11  495.14 

2.22 Other Current Liabilities (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Statutory liabilities*  240.95  196.31  111.86 
Total  240.95  196.31  111.86 
*Statutory Liabilities consists of amount payable towards TDS, GST, Provident Fund, Profession tax, NPS etc.
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2.23 Current Tax Liabilities (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Provision for Tax  780.00  225.00  115.00 
Total  780.00  225.00  115.00 

Income Taxes
Income Tax expense in the statement of Profit and Loss comprises of the following:

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Current Tax  780.00  1,115.00  650.00 
Deferred Tax  (69.98)  (108.90)  55.31 
Prior year Tax adjustment  29.80  (9.72)  (57.67)
Total  739.82  996.38  647.64 

A Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year ended 31st March, 
2025 is as follows:

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Profit before tax (including exceptional Items)  3,237.83  3,722.56  2,113.30 
Applicable Tax Rate 25.17% 29.12% 29.12%
Computed expected Tax Expense  814.96  1,084.01  615.39 
Increase in Interest on G Sec-EIR  (0.24)  (0.28)  -  
Interest income taxable as Income from other source  (514.87)  (681.09)  (197.58)
Prior Year Tax Adjustment  29.80  (9.72)  (57.67)
Deferred Taxes  (69.98)  (108.90)  55.31 
Items of Income and expenses not considered for Tax purposes  (555.29)  (799.99)  (199.94)
CSR Expenses  10.89  5.32  1.83 
Other Disallowances - Gratuity and Leave Encashment Provisions 
and others

 8.24  9.24  6.91 

Items of Expense not deductible for Tax purposes:  19.13  14.56  8.74 
Excess Depreciation as per Income Tax  (56.63)  23.41  28.53 
1/5th Amortisation of Share Issue Expenses  (4.86)  (5.62)  (5.62)
Items of Expense deductible for Tax purposes  (61.49)  17.79  22.91 
Interest Income  514.87  681.09  197.58 
Others  7.14  (1.08)  2.96 
Income from other sources  522.01  680.01  200.54 
Total  739.32  996.38  647.64 
Tax Expense recognised during the year  739.32  996.38  647.64 

The applicable Indian Statutory tax rate for financial year 2024-25 is 25.17% and for both financial year 2023-24 & 
2022-23 is 29.12%
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Financial Instruments
Financial Instrument by Category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as follows: 

Financial Assets (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Measured at Amortised Cost
Trade Receivables  202.03  187.57  99.65 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  3,039.30  588.67  1,187.12 
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents  36,070.00  13,901.00  3,873.00 
Investments  1,406.33  1,605.42  1,968.20 
Other Financial Assets  231.99  4,089.70  8,135.06 

Total  40,949.65  20,372.36  15,263.03 

Financial Liabilities (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
Audited

 As at 
31st March 2024

Restated

As at 
1st April 2023

Restated

Measured at Amortised Cost
Trade Payables  4,287.90  643.69  631.89 
Lease liabilities
Other Financial Liabilities  24,242.12  8,063.07  5,093.69 

Total  28,530.02  8,706.76  5,725.58 

(i) Fair Value Hierarchy 
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed:

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)
At 31st March 2025 Notes Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 TOTAL

Financial assets
Investments

Government securities  2.05  1,406.33  -   -   1,406.33 
Total Financial Assets  1,406.33  -   -   1,406.33 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)
At 31st March 2024 Notes Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 TOTAL

Financial assets
Investments

Government securities  2.05 & 2.09  1,605.42  -   -   1,605.42 
Total Financial Assets  1,605.42  -   -   1,605.42 
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(Amount ₹ in Lakh)
At 1st April 2023 Notes Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 TOTAL

Financial assets
Investments

Government securities  2.05 & 2.09  1,103.90  -   -   1,103.90 
Treasury Bills  2.09  864.30  -   -   864.30 

Total Financial Assets  1,968.20  -   -   1,968.20 

	 Fair Value Hierarchy
Level 1 - The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and equity 
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial 
assets held by the group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2 -The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely 
as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, 
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 
3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3.

	 There are no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
	 (ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
	 Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

• the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

	 (iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost	
(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 01st April 2023
Carrying  
Amount

Fair  
Value

Carrying  
Amount

Fair  
Value

Carrying  
Amount

Fair  
Value

Financial assets
Investments
Government securities  1,406.33  1,445.48  1,605.42  1,616.18  1,103.90  1,107.07 
Treasury Bills  -   -   -   -   864.30  880.92 
Total  1,406.33  1,445.48  1,605.42  1,616.18  1,968.20  1,987.99 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same 
as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

	 Financial Risk Management 
This note explains the company’s exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the company’s future financial 
performance. The company’s risk management is predominantly controlled by a treasury department under policies approved 
by the board of directors.
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	 A. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or contract, leading to a 
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from cash and cash equivalents, debt investment instruments carried 
at amortised cost, deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers including trade 
receivables.

	 i. Risk management strategy
As part of the Company’s business operations, the Company primarily deals with Holding Company, regulated banks and 
financial institutions all of which are of high credit standing and accordingly has been assessed, as part of Company’s risk 
management strategy, as carrying low credit risk.

The Company on an ongoing basis monitor and assesses the credit standing of all its counterparties to ensure any underlying 
factors impacting the credit standing of its counterparties are updated as required. The company has exposures in the 
nature of cash and cash equivalents with banks, term deposits with banks, investments in marketable debt instruments 
mainly comprising of Central Government securities. The Company holds cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with 
diversified banking counterparties to further reduce the credit risk concentration. The investments of the Company carry 
sovereign ratings and accordingly, the credit risk exposure is near minimal.

	 ii. Impairment of financial assets/ECL
All of the entity’s financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, Investments, deposits with banks and financial 
institutions and trade receivables are at amortised cost and have been assessed to have low credit risk and accordingly 
the loss allowance recognized during the period was limited to 12 months’ expected losses. The identified impairment loss 
on all financial instruments subject to ECL have been assessed as immaterial. Management considers ‘low credit risk’ for 
Investments, being government securities and treasury bills, as all of these are sovereign in nature. Cash and cash equivalents 
and other bank balances are diversified across major banking counterparts with high credit ratings. Also, considering the 
nature of the Company’s business, where the Company primarily deals with Holding Company, banking counterparties and 
financial institutions as part of its operational activities, trade receivables are also considered to have low credit risk as the 
same is also primarily held with similar high rated.

Counterparty concentration
Counterparty Type Percentage of Total Exposure Risk Assessment

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Top customers 23% 25% Low Low
Top 5 customers 65% 66% Low Low

	 B. Liquidity Risk
‘Liquidity risk’ is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The company is exposed to liquidity risk from trade 
payables and other financial liabilities comprising of deposits and other payables.

	 i. Risk management strategy 
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities to meet obligations when 
due and to close out market positions. Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, investments 
and the cash flow that Company generate from the operations. Company continues to be free from any medium and 
long-term borrowings and maintain sufficient cash to meet strategic and operational requirements. Management monitors 
rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position against cash and cash equivalents and other liquid investments on the 
basis of expected cash flows. 
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	 ii. Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual 
maturities for all financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances because the impact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of financial 
liabilities 31st March 2025

Less than  
6 months 

6 - 12 
 months 

1 - 2  
years

2 - 5  
years 

More than  
5 years 

Total 

Trade payables  4,287.90  -   -   -   -   4,287.90 
Other financial liabilities  498.06  -   23,744.06  -   -   24,242.12 
Total  4,785.96  -   23,744.06  -   -   28,530.02 

Contractual maturities of financial 
liabilities 31st March 2024

Less than  
6 months 

6 - 12 
 months 

1 - 2  
years

2 - 5  
years 

More than  
5 years 

Total 

Trade payables  643.69  -   -   -   -   643.69 
Other financial liabilities  314.44  -   7,748.63  -   -   8,063.07 
Total  958.13  -   7,748.63  -   -   8,706.76 

Contractual maturities of financial 
liabilities 1st April 2023

Less than  
6 months 

6 - 12 
 months 

1 - 2  
years

2 - 5  
years 

More than  
5 years 

Total 

Trade payables  631.89  -   -   -   -   631.89 
Other financial liabilities  183.70  -   4,909.99  -   -   5,093.69 
Total  815.59  -   4,909.99  -   -   5,725.58 

	 C. Market risk
Under the current changing dynamics of the market, there is always a business or market risk for the Company. As company 
venture towards providing better customer experience in digital payments e.g. Consumers can use various payment modes 
including cash and digital modes such as UPI, Net Banking, Debit Cards, Credit Cards, Wallets, IMPS, Aadhaar-Based 
Payments etc. where the categories include utility payments such as Electricity, LPG Gas, Piped Gas, Water, Municipal Taxes 
& Services; telecom payments including Mobile Prepaid, Mobile Postpaid, Landline Postpaid, DTH, Cable, Broadband, and 
other recurring payments such as Loan Repayments, Insurance, FASTag Recharge, Credit Card, NCMC etc. More innovation 
and R&D for providing better customer experience in digital payment, will be made so as to maintain its competitiveness. 
Value addition on the existing products will be carried out so as to maintain its leadership in the market. As per our existing 
risk management framework, NBBL evaluates its Strategic, Compliance, Financial, Operational risks so as to maintain its 
effectiveness in delivery.

	 i. Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the functional 
currency (INR) of the company. The company operates internationally and transacts with international counterparties and 
accordingly is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. The Company does not hedge 
its exposure to the foreign currency risk since the exposure is assessed as immaterial to the company.
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	 ia. Foreign currency risk exposure
The company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows:

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
 As at 

31st March 2024
As at 

1st April 2023

Financial Assets
Advances to Vendors  -   -   12.33 
Financial Liabilities
NIL  -   -   -  

The aggregate net foreign exchange gain/loss recognised in statement of profit and loss is loss of ₹ 0.05 Lakh (31st March 2024 
₹ 0.63 Lakh). 

ib. Interest rate risk/price risk
The company’s interest rate/price risk mainly arises from investment in government securities with fixed rates, which exposes 
the group to fair value interest rate risk. Although the investments are carried at amortised cost the group as part of its 
valuation policy frequently tracks the fair value for the investment securities. Fair value of the investment securities as at 
31st March 2025 is ₹ 1,445.48 lakhs (31st March 2024 is ₹ 1,616.18 lakhs).

Capital Management
The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern. The Company 
is cash surplus and has only equity capital. The Company does not have any borrowings.

Gearing Ratio
Particulars  As at 

31st March 2025
 As at 

31st March 2024
As at 

1st April 2023

Net Debt  -   -   -  
Total Equity  10,000.00  10,000.00  10,000.00 
Net debt to Equity Ratio (in times)  -   -   -  

2.24 Revenue from Operations (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  Year ended 

31st March 2025
 Year ended 

31st March 2024

Income from Payment services  12,382.17  7,141.46 
Fetching Fees  1,938.61  1,407.12 
Certification income  38.00  18.00 
Total  14,358.78  8,566.58 
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2.25 Other Income (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  Year ended 

31st March 2025
 Year ended 

31st March 2024

Interest Income on Deposits  952.34  605.11 
Interest Income on Government Securities  111.67  112.27 
Interest Income - Govt Securities (IND AS)  0.91  0.96 
Interest Income on Treasury Bills  -   38.24 
Interest Income on earmarked fund
- BBPS SGM  978.74  411.87 
- NOCS SGM  1.92  0.91 
Interest on Income Tax Refund  -   1.05 
Liabilities no longer required - written back  62.32  71.08 
Other Miscellaneous Income  21.83  17.30 
Total  2,129.73  1,258.79 

2.26 Operating Expenses (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  Year ended 

31st March 2025
 Year ended 

31st March 2024

Annual Maintenance Charges - Network & IT Equipment  1,332.79  356.66 
Testing and Certification Charges  1,139.60  206.53 
Other Operating Expenses  4.60  89.96 
Total  2,476.99  653.15 

2.27 Marketing and Business Development Expenses (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  Year ended 

31st March 2025
 Year ended 

31st March 2024

Marketing Expenses  3,376.32  210.53 
Business Development and Marketing Support Services  92.34  648.29 
Total  3,468.66  858.82 

2.28 Employee Benefits Expenses (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  Year ended 

31st March 2025
 Year ended 

31st March 2024

Salary & Allowance  3,965.27  2,742.32 
Contribution to employee  201.16  141.93 
Gratuity & Leave Encashment  54.20  19.65 
Outsourcing Cost  47.38  32.18 
Staff Welfare  72.81  26.51 
Total  4,340.82  2,962.59 
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Gratuity and Leave Encashment
The Gratuity and Leave Encashment Scheme of the Company are funded with HDFC Life Insurance Company Limited. in the 
form of qualifying insurance policy. The disclosure is based on Actuarial Valuation as well as details provided by HDFC Life 
Insurance Company Limited.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and current service cost are measured using the projected unit credit 
method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.

The summarised position of post-employment benefits is recognised in the Profit and Loss account and Balance Sheet 
are as under:

Gratuity Plan (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Reconciliation of Amounts in Balance Sheet  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Opening Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability  56.95  24.11 
Total Expense/(Income) Recognised in Profit and Loss  42.69  28.08 
Actual Employer Contributions  (83.67)  (29.73)
Total Remeasurements Recognised in Other Comprehensive (Income)/Expenses  17.02  34.49 
Closing Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability  32.99  56.95 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Amounts in Balance Sheet  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)  174.20  118.26 
Fair Value of Plan Assets  141.23  61.31 
Funded Status - (Surplus) /Deficit  32.97  56.95 
Liability/(Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet  32.97  56.95 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Current Service Cost  39.14  27.05 
Interest Cost  7.81  5.83 
Expected Return on Plan Asset  (4.26)  (4.81)
Total Expense / (Income) included in "Employee Benefit Expenses"  42.69  28.07 
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Amount recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI)  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Amount recognised in OCI at the beginning of year  39.59  5.10 
Re-measurements due to :
Effect of Change in Financial Assumption  5.38  1.34 
Effect of Change in Demographic Assumption  -   -  
Effect of Experience Adjustments  28.46  32.85 
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses  33.84  34.19 
Return on Plan Assets (excluding Interest)  16.82  (0.30)
Total Re-measurements recognised in OCI  17.02  34.49 
Amount recognised in OCI at the end of the year  56.61  39.59 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Actual Return on Plan Assets  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Interest Income Plan Asset  4.26  4.81 
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets  16.82  (0.30)
Actual Return on Plan Assets  21.08  4.51 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Change in Present Value of Obligation during the year  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the beginning of the Year  118.26  91.32 
Current Service Cost  39.14  27.05 
Interest Cost  7.81  5.83 
Actual Plan Participants' Contributions  -   -  
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses  33.84  34.19 
Actual Benefits Paid  (24.84)  (40.13)
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year  174.21  118.26 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets during the year  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the year  61.32  67.21 
Interest Income Plan Asset  4.26  4.81 
Actual Enterprise's Contributions 83.67 29.73
Actual Benefits Paid  (24.84)  (40.13)
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets  16.82  (0.30)
Fair value of plan Assets at the end of the year  141.23  61.32 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)
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(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Current / Non Current Benefit Obligation  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Current Liability  -   -  
Non Current Liability  32.97  56.95 
Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet  32.97  56.95 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Other Items  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Expected Contributions for the next financial year 15.57 11.87
Decrement adjusted estimated tenure of Actuarial liability (years) 6.44 6.45

History of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO), Asset values, Surplus / Deficit, Experience Gain / Losses

Particulars 31st March  
2025

31st March  
2024

31st March  
2023

31st March  
2022

31st March  
2021

DBO  174.20  118.26  91.32  60.23  59.23 
Plan Assets  141.23  61.31  67.21  -   -  
(Surplus)/Deficit  32.97  56.95  24.11  60.23  59.23 
Exp Adj. - Plan Liabilities (Gain) / Loss  16.82  (0.30)  -   -   -  
Assumptions (Gain) / Loss  5.38  1.34  (2.79)  (1.16)  -  
Exp Adj. - Plan Liabilities (Gain) / Loss  28.46  32.85  27.04  (17.98)  -  
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  33.84  34.19  24.25  (19.14)  -  

Category of Assets  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Other (Including assets under schema of Inc.) 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Recognition of Actuarial Gain / Loss  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising on DBO  33.84  34.19 
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising on Plan Assets  (16.82)  0.30 
Total (Gain)/Loss recognised during the period  17.02  34.49 
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Sensitivity Analysis (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)  174.20  118.26 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount rate
DBO with Discount rate change by 50 bps (per annum) 179.36 169.3 121.73 114.96
Change in DBO (%) 2.96% -2.82% 2.93% -2.79%
Salary Growth Rate
DBO with Salary Growth rate change by 50 bps (per annum) 170.85 177.07 116.06 120.41
Change in DBO (%) -1.93% 1.65% -1.86% 1.82%

Expected Cash Flow
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Year 1  15.57  11.87 
Year 2  17.30  12.48 
Year 3  21.40  13.55 
Year 4  24.20  15.67 
Year 5  23.03  16.60 
Year 6 to 10  89.15  62.00 

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Actuarial assumptions
Discount Rate 6.40% 6.95%
Salary Escalation Rate 8.00% 8.00%
Expected Return on Assets 6.40% 6.95%
Withdrawal Rate 15.00% 15.00%
Retirement Age 60 years 60 years

Leave Encashment Plan (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Reconciliation of Amounts in Balance Sheet  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Discount rate
Opening Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability  18.09  10.35 
Total Expense/(Income) Recognised in Profit and Loss  15.67  20.87 
Actual Employer Contributions  (0.71)  (13.13)
Total Remeasurements Recognised in Other Comprehensive (Income)/Expenses  -   -  
Closing Balance Sheet (Asset)/Liability  33.05  18.09 
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(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Amounts in Balance Sheet  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)  86.48  69.43 
Fair Value of Plan Assets  53.42  51.34 
Funded Status - (Surplus) /Deficit  33.06  18.09 
Liability/(Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet  33.06  18.09 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Current Service Cost  24.44  19.61 
Interest Cost  4.68  3.72 
Expected Return on Plan Asset  (3.45)  (3.44)
Net Actuarial Losses/(Gains)  (10.01)  0.99 
Total Expense / (Income) included in "Employee Benefit Expenses"  15.66  20.88 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Actual Return on Plan Assets  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Interest Income Plan Asset  3.45  3.44 
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets  2.16  (0.21)
Actual Return on Plan Assets  5.61  3.23 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Change in Present Value of Obligation during the year  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the beginning of the Year  69.43  58.61 
Current Service Cost  24.44  19.61 
Interest Cost  4.68  3.72 
Actual Plan Participants' Contributions  -   -  
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses  (7.85)  0.78 
Actual Benefits Paid  (4.22)  (13.29)
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year  86.48  69.43 
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(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets during the year  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the year  51.33  48.26 
Interest Income Plan Asset  3.45  3.44 
Actual Enterprise's Contributions  0.71 13.13
Actual Benefits Paid  (4.22)  (13.29)
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets  2.16  (0.21)
Fair value of plan Assets at the end of the year  53.43  51.33 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Current / Non Current Benefit Obligation  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Current Liability  -   -  
Non Current Liability  33.06  18.09 
Liability/(Asset) Recognised in the Balance Sheet  33.06  18.09 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Other Items  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Expected Contributions for the next financial year 15.4 12.36
Decrement adjusted estimated tenure of Actuarial liability (years) 6.44 6.45

History of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO), Asset values, Surplus / Deficit, Experience Gain / Losses

Particulars 31st March  
2025

31st March  
2024

31st March  
2023

31st March  
2022

31st March  
2021

DBO  86.48  69.43  58.61  41.50  -  
Plan Assets  53.42  51.34  48.26  -   -  
(Surplus)/Deficit  33.06  18.09  10.35  41.50  -  
Exp Adj. - Plan Liabilities (Gain) / Loss  2.16  (0.21)  -   -   -  
Assumptions (Gain) / Loss  2.16  0.65  (1.68)  (0.90)  -  
Exp Adj. - Plan Liabilities (Gain) / Loss  (10.01)  0.14  11.06  (30.28)  -  
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  (7.85)  0.79  9.38  (31.18)  -  

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Category of Assets  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Other (including assets under Schemes of Ins.) 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%
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(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Recognition of Actuarial Gain / Loss  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising on DBO  (7.85)  0.78 
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising on Plan Assets  (2.16)  0.21 
Total (Gain)/Loss recognised during the period  (10.01)  0.99 

Sensitivity Analysis (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)  86.48  69.43 

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount rate
DBO with Discount rate change by 50 bps (per annum) 88.53 84.51 71.1 67.84
Change in DBO (%) 2.38% -2.27% 2.40% -2.29%
Salary Growth Rate
DBO with Salary Growth rate change by 50 bps (per annum) 84.53 88.49 67.84 71.07
Change in DBO (%) -2.25% 2.33% -2.28% 2.37%

Expected Cash Flow
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Year 1  15.40  12.36 
Year 2  13.61  10.97 
Year 3  12.04  9.74 
Year 4  10.53  8.65 
Year 5  9.33  7.62 
Year 6 to 10  25.97  28.29 

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Actuarial assumptions
Discount Rate 6.40% 6.95%
Salary Escalation Rate 8.00% 8.00%
Expected Return on Assets 6.40% 6.95%
Withdrawal Rate 15.00% 15.00%
Retirement Age 60 years 60 years
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2.29 Depreciation and Amortisation expenses (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  Year ended 
31st March 2025

Audited

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Restated

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment  88.44  51.94 
Amortisation of Intangible assets  1,335.87  733.09 
Total  1,424.31  785.03 

2.30 CSR Expenditure (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  Year ended 
31st March 2025

Audited

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Restated

CSR expenditure  43.27  18.28 
Total  43.27  18.28 
The Company contributes 2% of the Net profit before tax to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities as per 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The amount spent on CSR activities are based on the approvals received from 
the Board.

Particulars Amount paid Amount yet 
to be paid

Total

i)     Construction/Acquisition of any asset  -   -   -  
ii)    On Purpose Other than (i) above  -   -   -  

Amount Spent during the Year : Year ended 
31st March 2025

Year ended 
31st March 2024

i)   Amount required to be spent by 
the company during the year

 43.27  18.28 

ii)  Amount of expenditure incurred 43.27  18.28 
iii)  Shortfall at the end of the year  -   -  
iv) Total of previous years 

shortfall/ (excess)
 -   -  

v)  Reason for shortfall NA NA
vi)  Nature of CSR activities Education and livelihood initiative Education and livelihood initiative

 Skill Development Project***  School Transformation Project** 
 Building Sustainable Playground****  Skill Development Project***

vii) Details of Related Party 
Transactions

NA NA

viii) Details related to Movement 
of Provision

NA NA

*Unspent amount of ₹ 319/- was transferred to Schedule VII fund of National Mission for Clean Ganga as approved by the Board. 
**School Transformation Project-1 School in Gadhchiroli district of Maharashtra in Partnership with Learning Link Foundation as 
approved by the Board.
***Skill Development and Livelihood Project for vocational training of 270 unemployed women at Kanker district of Chhattisgarh as 
approved by the Board.
**** Building Sustainable Playground in 5 government schools for children at Mumbai Suburb as approved by the Board.
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2.31 Administrative and Other Expenses
(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  Year ended 
31st March 2025

Audited

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Restated
Shared Service Cost

Salary & Allowances  265.24  75.08 
Rent  206.59  188.20 
Electricity  9.09  8.36 
General Office Expenses  17.63  17.09 
Telephone & Communication Expenses  0.69  0.72 
Administrative Charges  33.13  23.15 

Rates and Taxes  0.40  2.09 
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses  151.98  98.26 
Computer Consumables  0.46  -   
General Office Expenses  0.35  0.05 
Sitting Fees to Directors  19.00  5.00 
Insurance  0.73  0.08 
Training & Seminar  139.38  107.68 
Internal Audit Fees  2.96  2.13 
Postage, Printing & Stationery  1.98  2.72 
Recruitment Expenses  30.75  19.14 
Professional Fees  206.25  81.80 
Legal fees  8.50  14.11 
Membership and Subscription Fees  28.92  31.12 
Line of Credit and Other SGM Expenses  363.73  138.88 
Foreign Exchange (gain) / loss  0.05  0.63 
Payment to the Statutory Auditors*  4.32  4.20 
Tax Audit Fees  0.65  0.80 
Provision for Doubtful Other Receivables  2.00  -   
Interest on MSME  -    0.05 
Miscellaneous Expenses  1.85  3.60 
Total  1,496.63  824.94 

* Payment to the Statutory Auditors (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  Year ended 

31st March 2025
Audited

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Restated
Statutory Audit Fees  3.00  3.00 
Audit Fees for Limited Review  1.20  1.10 
Other Certification charges  0.12  0.10 
Out of Pocket Expenses (OPE)  0.28  -   
Total  4.60  4.20 
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2.32 Earnings per Share (EPS) (Amount ₹ in Lakh)
Particulars  Year ended 

31st March 2025
Audited

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Restated
Net Profit as per statement of Profit and Loss  2,358.05  2,726.18 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares  1,00,00,000  1,00,00,000 
EPS :
(i) Basic EPS (Face value ₹ 100 per Equity Share)  23.58  27.26 
(ii) Diluted EPS (Face value ₹ 100 per Equity Share)  23.58  27.26 

2.33 Segment Reporting
Operating segment/s are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is 
evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. 
The Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) is the Chief Executive Officer. The Company has only one identified 
business segments (industry practice) namely “Payments Systems”.

The Financial Statements itself may be considered to be the segment result as per disclosure requirement of Indian Accounting 
Standard 108 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2.34 Related Party Disclosures

Name of Related Parties Place of 
Incorporation

Ownership  
interest

Nature of Relationship

National Payments Corporation of India India 100% Immediate and ultimate parent entity
NPCI International Payments Limited India - Fellow Subsidiary
NPCI BHIM Services Limited India - Fellow Subsidiary

Name of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) / Related parties:

Key Managerial Personnel 
- Directors

Title Date of  
appointment

Date of Retirement/ 
Cessation

Mr. Ajay Kumar Choudhary Chairman (Independent Non-Executive) 08-Feb-24 -
Mr. Dilip Asbe Non-independent Non-Executive 10-Dec-20 -
Mr. Rana Ashutosh Kumar Singh Non-independent Non-Executive 12-Aug-21 07-Aug-24
Mr. Shamsher Singh Non-independent Non-Executive 16-Jan-25 -
Ms. Praveena Rai Non-independent Non-Executive 27-Jan-22 15-Oct-24
Mr. Parag Rao Non-independent Non-Executive 02-Jun-23 -
Ms. Drushti Desai Independent Director 11-Jan-24 -

Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company

Designation Date of  
appointment

Date of Retirement/ 
Cessation

Ms. Noopur Chaturvedi Chief Executive Officer 06-Aug-21 -
Mr. Pavan Kumar Holani Chief Financial Officer 21-Aug-23 22-Jul-24
Mr. Srivatsan G Chief Financial Officer 20-Jan-25 -
Ms. Supreetha Shetty Company Secretary 01-Dec-21 -

Name of Related Parties Nature of Relationship
CSB Bank Ltd. (Related party from 20-Jun-2023 to 07-Aug-2023) Entity with common director
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Transactions with Related Parties
The details of Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company for the year ended 31st March 2025 are as below: 

 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Name of Related Party Nature of Transaction Year Ended 

31st March 2025
Year Ended 

31st March 2024

National Payments 
Corporation of India

Income Reimbursement of Employee Benefit Expenses  -   8.29 
Expense Shared Service Cost  532.35  307.60 

Business Development and Marketing Support  92.34  648.29 
Technology Infrastructure, Operational Support  1,077.81  147.00 
(IT Support & Other Services)
Reimbursement of Employee Benefit Expenses  5.47  13.39 
Outsource Cost  -   10.75 
Professional Fees  -   2.70 
License cost (Expenses)  -   11.74 
License cost (Prepaid Expenses)  -   23.49 

Asset Microsoft D365 ERP implementation  -   49.61 
CSB Bank Ltd. Income Switching and Fetching Fees  -   0.00 
Total  1,707.97  1,222.86 

Details of Amounts Due to or Due from Related Parties as at 31-Mar-2025	 (Amount ₹ in Lakh) 
Name of Related Party Nature of Balances As at 

31st March 2025
As at 

31st March 2024

National Payments Corporation of India Trade Payable  -   81.94 
Capital Creditor  -   49.61 

Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Sitting Fees  19.00  5.00 
Advance for Security Deposit paid/(repayment)  -   (3.50)
Total  19.00  1.50 

Compensation to Key Management Personnel of the Company (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Short Term Employee Benefits  267.20  220.50 
Post-Employment Benefits*  -   -  
Other Long Term Benefits  -   -  
Total  267.20  220.50 
*The above Post-employment benefit excludes gratuity provision which cannot be separately identified from the composite amount 
advised by actuary.
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2.35 Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  As at 
31st March 2025

 As at 
31st March 2024

(i) Capital Commitments
 (a) Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account 

and not provided for 
 854.14  1,911.61 

Total  854.14  1,911.61 

2.36 Value of Import of Services (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

NIL  -   -  
Total  -   -  

2.37 Revenue Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

Professional Fees*  2.50  1.23 
Membership and Subscription Fees  2.27  -   
Training and Seminar*  -    55.35 
Marketing Expenses  -    19.79 
Total  4.77  76.37 

2.38 Income in Foreign Currency (Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  Year ended 
31st March 2025

 Year ended 
31st March 2024

NIL  -   -  
Total  -   -  

	  Accounting for Foreign Currency Transactions:
	  Expenditure in foreign currencies are recorded in INR by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate at the 

time of transaction. Exchange rate differences consequent to settlement are recognised as income / expenditure.

2.39 Details of Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined in MSMED Act, 2006.
	  Information related to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (the Act) is disclosed hereunder. 

The information given below has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information 
available with the Company.

(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  As at 
31st March 2025

 As at 
31st March 2024

a (i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier / service provider at the end
      of the accounting year

 1,764.40  -  

  (ii) Interest due on above  -   -  
Total  1,764.40  -  
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(Amount ₹ in Lakh)

Particulars  As at 
31st March 2025

 As at 
31st March 2024

b. Amount of Interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Act, along with 
amount of payment made beyond the appointed date during the year.

 -   -  

c. Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the due date during the year) but without adding 
the interest specified under the Act.

 -   -  

d. Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the financial year.  -   -  
e. Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the Small 
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 
23 of the Act.

 -   -  

2.40 Other Statutory Compliances
a. The Company has neither traded or nor invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current financial year 

or previous financial year.

b. The Company does not have any subsidiaries and hence do not have to comply with the number of layer of companies 
prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

c. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

d. The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender during the current 
financial year or previous financial year.

e. Loans and Advances
- 	The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related 

parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), which are either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms 
or period of repayment during the current financial year or previous financial year.

- 	No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (‘Ultimate 
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

-	 No funds have been received by the company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties’), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate 
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

f. Declaration regarding Borrowed funds
- 	The company has not taken any borrowings from banks for the specific purpose purpose as at the balance sheet date.
- 	The company has not taken any borrowings from banks on the basis of security of Current assets during the current 

financial year or previous financial year.
- 	The company has not taken any secured borrowings during the current financial year or previous financial year accordingly 

there is no requirement for charge or satisfaction of charges is to be registered with ROC.
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g. No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

h. There was no transaction relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income tax act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

i. There was no case of misappropriation of funds in the Company.

 2.41 Relationship with Struck Off Companies
	 The company does not have any transactions/outstanding balance with the struck-off companies.

2.42 Key Financial Ratios

Ratios Formula 31st March  
2025 

(₹ in Lakh)

31st March  
2024 

(₹ in Lakh)

% 
Varriance

Reason for Change

Numerator Current Assets  40,253.70  19,179.58 110% Current Assets has 
increased by 110% 
whereas Current Liabilities 
has increased by 321%.

Denominator Current Liabilities  5,806.91  1,379.44 321%
(a) Current Ratio (in times)  6.93  13.90 -50%

Numerator Net profit after taxes  2,358.05  2,726.18 -14% Net profit after taxes 
has decreased by 
14% whereas Average 
Shareholder's Equity has 
increased by 19%.

Denominator Average 
Shareholder's Equity

 15,749.99  13,223.09 19%

(b) Return on Equity Ration 
(in percentage)

14.97% 20.62% -27%

Numerator Revenue From Operations  14,358.78  8,566.58 68% Revenue From Operations 
has increased by 68% 
w h e re a s  Av e r a g e 
Trade Receivables has 
increased by 36%.

Denominator Average Trade Receivables  194.80  143.61 36%
(c) Trade Receivables 

Turnover Ratio (in times)
 73.71  59.65 24%

Numerator Operating Expenses*  7,442.28  2,336.91 218% Operat ing Expenses 
has increased by 218% 
w h e re a s  Av e r a g e 
Trade Payables has 
increased by 287%.

Denominator Average Trade Payables  2,465.80  637.79 287%
(d) Trade Payables Turnover 

Ratio (in times)
 3.02  3.66 -18%

Numerator Revenue From Operations  14,358.78  8,566.58 68% Revenue From Operations 
has increased by 68% 
whereas Working Capital 
has increased by 94%.

Denominator Working Capital  34,446.79  17,800.14 94%
(e) Net Capital Turnover 

Ratio (in times)
 0.42  0.48 -13%

Numerator Net profit after taxes  2,358.05  2,726.18 -14% Net profit after taxes 
has decreased by 14% 
w h e re a s  R e v e n u e 
From Operations has 
increased by 68%.

Denominator Revenue From Operations  14,358.78  8,566.58 68%
(f) Net Profit Ratio (in 

percentage)
16.42% 31.82% -48%

Numerator E a r n i n g s  b e f o r e 
Interest and Tax

 3,237.83  3,722.56 -13% Earnings before Interest 
and Tax has decreased 
by  13% whereas 
Capital Employed has 
increased by 16%.

Denominator Capital Employed  16,925.52  14,574.46 16%
(g) Return on Capital 

Employed (in percentage)
19.13% 25.54% -25%
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Ratios Formula 31st March  
2025 

(₹ in Lakh)

31st March  
2024 

(₹ in Lakh)

% 
Varriance

Reason for Change

Numerator Net return on Investment  2,044.67  1,168.40 75% Net return on Investment 
has increased by 75% 
whereas Average value 
of Investment has 
increased by 65%.

Denominator Average value of Investment  28,656.38  17,330.81 65%
(h) Return on Investment (in 

percentage)
7.14% 6.74% 6%

*Incl. Markeiting, Administrative & Other Expenses

2.43 Restatement

Restatement in Balance Sheet 31-Mar-2024 1-Apr-2023
Particulars Nature & Reason of 

reclassification
Note 
No.

Restated Audited Restated Audited

Non-Current Assets Tax Asset earlier classified as 
Current Tax Assets are now 
classif ied as Non-Current 
Tax Assets

2.08  109.44  -   70.14  -  
g.  Non-Current 
Tax Assets
Current Liabilities NA  225.00  115.56  115.00  44.86 
c.  Current Tax 
Liabilities (net)

 -  

c.  Other Current Assets TDS on provision was earlier 
clubbed under Advance to 
Vendors is now netted off from 
provision (unbilled dues sch. 
2.20) (6.85 lakhs Mar'24)

2.14  214.67  221.52  129.80  129.80 

Current Liabilities
a.  Financial Liabilities Below are reclassified :

1. Trade related provisions 
(` 460.45 lakhs Mar'24 and 
`283.33 lakhs Apr'23)
2. Capital Creditors now 
reclassified to Other financial 
liabilities (`75.61 lacs Mar'24 and 
NIL Apr'23)
3. TDS on provision (6.85 
lakhs Mar'24)

2.20  643.69  114.48  631.89  348.56 
 i.   Trade Payables Due 
to: Other than Micro and 
Small Enterprises
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Restatement in Balance Sheet 31-Mar-2024 1-Apr-2023
Particulars Nature & Reason of 

reclassification
Note 
No.

Restated Audited Restated Audited

ii.  Other Financial 
Liabilities

Employee related provision are 
now reclassified as other financial 
liabilities (`234.62 lakhs Mar'24 
and 177.34 lakhs Apr'23)
2. Capital Creditors now 
reclassified from Trade Payables 
(` 75.61 lacs Mar'24 and 
NIL Apr'23)

2.19  314.44  155.43  183.70  6.36 

Provisions All Provisions other than Employee 
Benefits (Gratuity and Leave 
Encashment) earlier classified 
under Provisions Current are now 
reclassified as above.
Vendor Provisions reclassed to 
Trade Payable unbilled"

NA  -   695.07  -   460.67 

b.  Other Equity Reclass of accumulated net 
income on SGM - earmarked 
Investments (net off SGM related 
and Income Tax expenses) since 
inception of SGM Contribution 
from Other Financial Liabilities 
(Non Current) to Other Equity

2.16 4,574.46 4,268.08 1,871.72 1,752.97
i.   Other Financial 
Liabilities (Non Current)

2.17  7,748.63  8,055.01  4,909.99  5,028.74 

Restatement in Statement of Profit and Loss 31-Mar-2024 1-Apr-2023
Particulars Nature & Reason of 

reclassification
Note 
No.

Restated Audited Restated Audited

Income
Other Income Income on staff Loan reclassified 

from salary & allowances to Other 
Miscellaneous Income

2.22  1,258.79  1,258.64  NA  NA 

Expenses
Employee 
Benefits Expenses

1. Income on Staff Loan reclassified 
from Salary & Allowances to Other 
Miscellaneous Income

2.25  2,962.59  3,037.52  NA  NA 

Administrative and 
Other Expenses

Salary & Allowances for (shared 
service cost) reclassif ied 
from Employee Benef i ts 
expenses to Administrative and 
Other Expenses

2.28  824.94  749.86  NA  NA 
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Restatement in Statement of Cash Flows 31-Mar-2024 1-Apr-2023
Particulars Nature & Reason of 

reclassification
Note 
No.

Restated Audited Restated Audited

Cash flow from operating activities
Adjustment to reconcile net profit / (loss) to net cash by operating activities
Interest Income from 
financial assets at 
amortised cost

Interest Income from financial assets 
is adjusted as a non cash item 

-0.96 -  NA  NA 

Foreign Exchange 
(gain) / loss

Now only unrealised foreign 
exchange gain is adjusted while 
earlier net loss on realised and 
unrealised foreign exchange 
was adjusted 

-  0.63  NA  NA 

Provisions Provision is now shown as operating 
profit after the working capital 
changes, earlier was adjusted as 
operating profit before the working 
capital changes

- 346.05  NA  NA 

Remeasurement of 
defined Employee 
Benefit Plans

Provision is now shown as 
operating profit before the working 
capital changes, earlier shown as 
operating profit after the working 
capital changes

-34.49 -   NA  NA 

Operating Profit / (Loss) before Working Capital changes 
(increase)/Decrease in 
trade receivables

Earlier shown clubbed under 
Trade and Other Receivables, now 
separated basis nature and now 
also, in line with restatement in the 
Balance sheet item

-87.92 -208.21  NA  NA 

increase/(Decrease) in 
trade payables

 82.88  NA  NA 

(increase)/Decrease in 
other financial assets

-28.57  NA  NA 

(increase)/Decrease in 
other assets

-84.87

increase/(Decrease) in 
other financial liabilities

Earlier shown clubbed under Trade 
and Other Payables, now separated 
basis nature and now also, in line 
with restatement in the Balance 
sheet item

2,969.38 2,802.97  NA  NA 

increase/(Decrease) in 
provisions

 40.58  NA  NA 

increase/(Decrease) in 
other liabilities

 84.45  NA  NA 

Cash flow from Investing activities
Redemption / (Investment) 
in earmarked funds (net) 

Earlier shown as net change in the 
value of invenstments, howevrer, 
the same is now bifurcated 
between Investment and maturity 
of the same.

4,197.00  NA  NA 

Investment in 
earmarked funds 

-11,211.00  NA  NA 

Maturity of 
earmarked funds 

7,014.00  NA  NA 
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Restatement in Statement of Cash Flows 31-Mar-2024 1-Apr-2023
Particulars Nature & Reason of 

reclassification
Note 
No.

Restated Audited Restated Audited

Redemption / (Investment) 
in Term Deposits with 
banks (net) 

Earlier shown as net change in the 
value of invenstments, howevrer, 
the same is now bifurcated 
between Investment and maturity 
of the same.

-1,757.00  NA  NA 

Investment in own fund 
in Bank FD 

-7,555.00  NA  NA 

Maturity of own fund 
in Bank FD 

5,798.00  NA  NA 

Redemption / (Investment) 
in Government securities 
(quoted) (net) 

Earlier shown as net change in the 
value of invenstments, howevrer, 
the same is now bifurcated 
between Investment and maturity 
of the same.

501.52  NA  NA 

Investment in Government 
Securities (quoted) 

-501.93  NA  NA 

Redemption of 
Government 
Securities (quoted) 

0.41  NA  NA 

2.44 Other Notes
a. There are no material prior period errors which can impact the financial position of the company as per IND AS 8.
b. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped, reclassified and rearranged to correspond with the current year figures / 

presentation wherever necessary.
c. Numbers are rounded off to the nearest lakh.

As per our report attached	 For NPCI Bharat BillPay Limited
For JMT and Associates	 Ajay Kumar Choudhary	 Drushti Desai
Chartered Accountants	 Chairman 	 Director
Registration No.: 104167W	 DIN : 09498080	 DIN : 00294249

Sanjay Pichholia	 Noopur Chaturvedi	 Srivatsan G
Partner	 Managing Director and CEO	 Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 122651	 DIN : 11013793
	 	
Date: 16th May 2025	 Supreetha Shetty
Place: Mumbai	 Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE

FORM NO. AOC.1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate companies/
joint ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in `)
1. Sl. No.

Not applicable

2. Name of the subsidiary
3. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 

from the holding company's reporting period
4. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of 

the relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.
5. Share capital
6. Reserves & surplus
7. Total assets
8. Total Liabilities
9. Investments
10. Turnover
11. Profit before taxation
12. Provision for taxation
13. Profit after taxation
14. Proposed Dividend
15. % of shareholding
Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Name 1 Name 2 Name 3
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

Not Applicable

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end
No. 
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture
Extend of Holding % 

3. Description of how there is significant influence 
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated
5. Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet
6. Profit / Loss for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation
i. Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ajay Kumar Choudhary	 Drushti Desai
Chairman 	 Director
DIN : 09498080	 DIN : 00294249

Noopur Chaturvedi	 Srivatsan G
Managing Director and CEO	 Chief Financial Officer
DIN : 11013793
	 	
Supreetha Shetty
Company Secretary




